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It is our pleasure in presenting our 2020 Integrated 
Report which aims to provide stakeholders with a 
balanced insight into our business.

The report has been prepared in accordance with the 
International Framework of the International Integrated 
Reporting Council (IIRC).

This report is primarily targeted at our tenants, regulators, 
employees, and suppliers with the aim to provide 
information relating to our strategy, business model, 
operating context, material risk, stakeholder interest, 
performance and challenges being faced and how they 
have impacted or created value in the short, medium 
and long term.

We strive to improve disclosure and adhere to the 
highest reporting standards.

Reporting scope and boundaries
The report covers material information relating to 
the business model, strategy, material issues and risk, 
governance, performance and challenges faced. It covers 
the year 1 March 2019 to 29 February 2020, and material 
issues up to the board approval on 6 January 2021 have 
also been included.

The report covers primary activities and extends beyond 
financial reporting and includes non-financial perfor-
mance, opportunities, risks and outcomes attributable to 
our relationship with our key stakeholders which have a 
significant influence on our ability to create value.

Given the impact of the COVID -19 pandemic, we 
deemed it material and necessary to show case same 
on our capitals as at date of board approval. To align 
with our governance and risk management approach-
es we have integrated these aspects through our 
Integrated Report.

Materiality and Material Issues
We apply the principles of materiality in determining 
what information should be included in our Integrated 

Report. Management’s 
judgement has been used 
in deciding what could sub-
stantively affect strategy, revenue, 
and profitability.

The directors in consultation with Management have 
identified the issues that could have the most significant 
impact on the Group’s ability to create sustainable value 
for its stakeholders. In determining these material issues 
internal and external factors have been considered. 
Following the COVID-19 pandemic that emerged in 
SA during March 2020 and the approval date of our 
Integrated Report the board and Management has 
deemed it a material issue and its impact and the 
challenges it has brought have necessitated we primarily 
focus on how it will impact all material matters. We 
discuss same on pages 46.

Independent assurance
The content of our Integrated Report has been reviewed 
by the directors and has not been independently as-
sured except the external auditor, A2A Kopano Inc who 
has provided assurance on the Audited Annual Financial 
Statements and expressed an unmodified audit opinion.

Directors approval
The board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring 
the integrity of the Integrated Report. It is the board’s 
opinion that it addresses issues that are material to the 
Group’s performance. The directors believe that the 
Integrated Report has been prepared in accordance with 
the Integrated Reporting Framework of IIRC.

aboUT oUR 
InTeGRaTeD 
RePoRT
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Oversight responsibility for the content of the Integrated 
Report has been delegated to the Audit and Risk 
Committee who recommended the report for approval 
by the board. This report was approved by the board of 
directors on 6 January 2021.

forward – looking statements
This report contains certain forward – looking state-
ments with respect to the Group’s financial position, 
results, operations and businesses. These statements 
are based on the beliefs of Management as well as 
assumptions made and information currently available 
to Management. These statements and forecasts by their 

nature involve risks and uncertainties, as they relate to 
events and depend on circumstances that might occur 
in the future.

These forward – looking statements include, without 
limitation, statements relating to the Group’s business 
prospects, future developments, trends and conditions 
in the industry and geographical area in which the 
Group operates, its strategic plans, objectives and goals, 
its ability to control costs.

Forward –looking statements made as at the time 
of approval of this report were informed by business 
plans, economic forecasts and events which have taken 
place between our year end and date of approval of 
this report.

Key concepts

our value creation process

Value creation process is the outcome of how we apply 
and use our capitals in delivering on our purpose for all 
stakeholders. Our value creation process is outlined on 
page 14–17.

Value is defined by our tenants, regulators, employees, 
suppliers and other stakeholders. It is defined in the 
context of opportunities and threats facing the Group.

D.B. Khoza J.S. Malan

D. T. Mokoena M.G Xaba K.T. Majola

P. Ntuli R.L. ChaukeZ.A. Shongwe

signatures
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our six capitals

The primary purpose of integrated reporting is to explain 
to stakeholders how an organisation creates value 
over time and this we do through a combination of 
quantitative and qualitative information which involves 
the capitals. The capitals are stocks of value that are 
affected or transformed by our outputs. These capitals 
are financial capital, manufactured capital, intellectual 
capital, human capital, social and relationship capital and 
natural capital. Together they represent stores of value 
that are the basis or our value creation.

Our relevance as a social housing institution today and in 
the future coupled with our ability to create long – term 
value are interrelated and are dependent on the capitals 
available to us (inputs), how we utilise them (value – 
adding activities), our impact on them and the value we 
deliver (outputs – and outcomes).

our strategic focus arears

 ■ Being the best social housing institution and provide 
the highest standard of service.

 ■ Ensure that superior building quality is maintained
 ■ Building communities through a structured commu-

nity development framework
 ■ Sustained growth ensuring operational stability and 

economic performance
 ■ Building solid stakeholder relationships
 ■ Reduce the environmental impact of our operations

our stakeholders

 ■ Tenants
 ■ Staff
 ■ Regulators
 ■ Society
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oVeRVIeW of 
eHc GRoUP

Emalahleni Housing Company (EHC) was established and 
incorporated in 2002 as a social housing institution. It is 
a non-profit company duly incorporated and registered 
in terms of the laws of the Republic of South Africa. It 
has full accreditation and it is regulated by the Social 
Housing Regulatory Authority (SHRA).

In 2004, Emalahleni Housing Company registered 
a wholly owned subsidiary, Limelight Property 
Investments (Limelight) with a sole purpose of diversify-
ing its products. As a special purpose vehicle, Limelight 
would be able to enter and explore opportunities in the 
market which Emalahleni Housing Company by virtue of 
its formation is not able to.

As a non-profit company, Emalahleni Housing Company 
is required to apply all of its assets and income, how-
ever derived, to advance and aid its stated non-profit 
objectives set in its Memorandum of Incorporation. A 
non-profit company may also acquire and hold secu-
rities issued by a profit company, directly or indirectly, 
alone or with any other person, carry on any business, 
trade or undertaking consistent with or ancillary to its 
stated objectives.

Section 14 (1)(d) of the Social Housing Act provides 
that a social housing institution must re-invest 

operational surpluses generated as a result of funding 
provided in terms of the social housing programme, 
in the further approved projects, hence any financ-
ing provided to Limelight by Emalahleni Housing 
Company may be used for approved projects related 
to social housing.

The general principles applicable to social housing are 
that in giving priority to the needs of low and medium 
income households in social housing development, 
the national, provincial and local spheres of govern-
ment and social housing institutions must promote 
incentives to social housing institutions and other 
delivery agents to enter the social housing market. 
Other delivery agent means an entity other than a 
social housing institution which may undertake an 
approved project, but excludes a provincial govern-
ment or municipality.

Through Limelight, Emalahleni Housing Company is 
able to raise capital to cross subsidise its social housing 
objectives. Its establishment serves to mitigate the 
challenges faced by Emalahleni Housing Company 
because of the regulations that relate to rentals and 
securing development funding.

Limelight is envisaged to focus on property develop-
ment, canvassing of loan funding for social housing 
projects and provide rental management, property 
maintenance, refuse removal, gardening services, 
security and management of sub-metering of electricity.

In 2015, Emalahleni Housing Company established 
Likhaya Community Development NPC (Likhaya). The 
main purpose being to provide tenants with more than 
rental accommodation but a community. As a social 
housing institution, Emalahleni Housing Company’s core 
responsibility is to provide a good living environment 
and this can be done through community development 
initiatives. Likhaya Community development was 
conceptualised as a special purpose vehicle to drive 
this broad and fundamental objective to help build 
community capacity in order to address issues and take 
advantage of opportunities, find common ground and 
balance competing interest.
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Average rental 
collection

35%

Service delivery 
expenditure

R11 million

Rental increase 5.5%

Vacancy rate 15%

Net asset value R50 million

Employees’ 43

Tenants’ 1 146 at year end

Liquidity ratio 0.72:1

Total number of units’ 1 349

Emalahleni 
Housing 

Company NPC

Likhaya 
Community 

Development NPC

Limelight  
Property 

Investments 
(PTY) Ltd
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Social housing is housing provided for people on 
low income or with particular needs by government 
agencies or non-profit organisations. It is a rental 
housing option for low income persons which requires 
institutionalised management and is provided by 
accredited social housing institutions in designated 
restructuring zones.

The purpose of social housing is to contribute to the 
national priority of restructuring South African society in 
order to address structural, economic, social and spatial 
dysfunctionalities, therefore contributing to govern-
ment’s vision of Sustainable Human Settlements.

The concept primarily covers the rental tenure option 
and excludes immediate individual ownerships by 
the residents.

The concept of social housing was introduced in South 
Africa in 2000. In 2008 a revised social housing policy 
was introduced. In August 2010, the Social Housing 
Regulatory Authority (SHRA) was established by the 

National Department of Human Settlements in terms of 
the Social Housing Act, No 16 of 2008.

The mandate of SHRA is to capacitate, invest in and 
regulate the social housing sector. One of SHRA‘s roles is 
to regulate rentals charged on social housing units and 
determine which low income persons must benefit from 
social housing. In this regard the low to middle income 
households targeted are household income in a range 
of R1 500 to R15 000 with the income classifications and 
rentals as follows:

Social housing is a powerful instrument to address spatial 
restructuring, economic integration, social development, 
urban efficiency, urban inclusivity and good urban 
management. Social housing is Government’s primary 
housing product that is capable of achieving the desired 
densities to support spatial transformation. There is a 
definite demand shift in cities towards rental accom-
modation which is expected to grow given the rate 
of urbanisation.

Income bands
Income Bands

Income
Spread

Rent
Quote

Min
Rental

Max
RentalLower

After
Tax

Upper
After
Tax

1 R1 500 R1 500 R3 500 R3 500 10% 25% R375 R875

2. R3 501 R3 501 R5 500 R5 500 20% 27% R945 R1 485

3. R5 501 R5 501 R7 700 R6 314 20% 32% R1 760 R2 464

4. R7 701 R6 315 R11 300 R9 266 20% 35% R2 695 R3 955

5. R11 301 R9 267 R15 000 R12 300 30% 37% R4 181 R5 500

WHaT Is  
socIal HoUsInG



EHC is one of the few, fully accredited social housing 
institutions in the country and manages 1 349 units 
that are based at Emalahleni, a coal mining and power 
generation city in Mpumalanga Province.

EHC’s philosophy is not only about building houses/ 
rental stock, it is about transforming residential areas and 
building communities. Its motto being “Bridging the 
gap to a better life”.

social Housing Institutions 
accreditation as of July 2020
As of July 2020, there are 107 accredited institutions, 
with twelve (12) of the institutions fully accredited with 

ninety – six (96) being 
conditionally accredited.

Fully and conditionally 
accredited SHI’s per 
province.

11

eHc In conTexT

accredited sHI’s per province

Fully and conditionally accredited SHI’s per province.

* As per SHRA Q1 report 2020/21.
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As per SHRA’s state of the Social Housing Sector Report 2017



We deliver our products services through our 
4 complexes.

 ■ Uthingo Park – Situated in Tasbet Park, the complex 
consists of 1205 units and it is surrounded by residen-
tial suburbs with numerous amenities available. The 
complex is close to shopping complexes, schools 
and other amenities. Within the vicinity, there is a 
Primary School, High School and a Crèche.

 ■ Lesedi Court – Built as part of government’s 
Breaking New Ground project, the project has 
104, three storey units situated at Klarinet Ext 6. 
Schools and other social amenities are within reach 
to tenants.

 ■ Panorama Heights – Consists of 20 upmarket 
flats with garages. Schools and other amenities are 
within reach.

 ■ Weaver’s Nest – Situated in the Emalahleni 
CBD, this property consists of 20 rooms.

We offer the following services and products:

Services
 ■ Household maintenance (Day to Day, Planned, 

Routine and Reactive)
 ■ Refuse removal
 ■ Common Area Upkeep
 ■ Rental Collections
 ■ Allocations

Products
 ■ 1 bedroom units
 ■ 2 bedroom units which are 

the freestanding, semi-detached 
or walk ups

 ■ 3 bedroom units

13WHeRe We  
seRVe, PRoDUcTs 
anD seRVIces
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oUR ValUe cReaTInG 
bUsIness MoDel

our capitals enable 
Value – adding
INPUTS

financial capital

Our financial capital input takes the form of, govern-
ment grants, rentals and retained surplus. Our income 
is majorly derived from Uthingo Park. The Group 
is currently facing rental boycotts and vandalism 
at Uthingo Park and this has greatly affected our 
financial capital. The stakeholders affected are tenants, 
SHRA, government.

 ■ Equity of R50 million
 ■ Total assets R42 million (property portfolio)
 ■ The Group has plans to expand its property portfolio 

to address its reliance on Uthingo Park with 168 units 
in the pipeline

 ■ Zero surplus for the year

Manufactured capital

Our manufactured capital comprises of rental property. 
Currently we manage about 1349 units. The Group 
intends to diversify its products by adding student 
accommodation. The stakeholders affected are tenants, 
staff, SHRA, investors.

 ■ 4 complexes in Emalahleni with 1 349 units

Human capital

We rely on appropriate skills to deliver on our strategic 
objectives and on our brand promise. Our staff is 
encouraged to study and take up targeted training as an 
investment in human capital and to ensure the delivery 
of operational excellence. The stakeholders affected are 
staff, Department of Labour and Services SETA.

 ■ A total of 45 employees at year end. 41 permanent 
and 4 temporary who embrace

 ■ Strong in compliance and governance
 ■ Hard work
 ■ R14 904 invested in employee training in wireman’s 

licence COC and BA Communication Science

Intellectual capital

 ■ Fusion
 ■ Nicor system which handles tenants data and 

accounts
 ■ Tenant portal where tenants can check their balances
 ■ SAGE VIP

social and relationship capital

The Group operations are inextricably linked to the 
community where it is located and it actively nurtures 
the people around it. The Group funds and contrib-
utes to its social capital through its corporate social 
investment projects.



We will continue to assist the community to live up to 
our brand promise “bridging the gap to a better life”. 
The stakeholders affected are staff, tenants, community 
and regulators.

 ■ 1 146 tenants
 ■ One of the 12 fully accredited social housing institu-

tions in the country
 ■ Solid relationship with our regula-

tor and other stakeholders

natural capital

The Group’s exposure to natural 
capital is relatively at a low-level. 
The Group is exposed to natural capital through the 
Municipal services supplied at its complexes. The 
availability of natural capital has a significant impact on 
our services to the tenant. The stakeholders affected 
are tenants and the community.

15
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activities That create Value for 
our stakeholders
OUTCOMES

financial

−  Debtors balance as at 29 February 2020–R23 million
+  Liquidity ratio went up from 0.64:1 to 0.72:1
−  Zero reserves
−  Deficit of R80 million

Intellectual

+  219 tenants registered on the portal
−  About 700 tenants not registered on the portal
+  Maintained full accreditation despite challenges

Human

+  Only 2 employees resigned and 1 retired
+  R12.5 million in salaries and benefits
−  Agreed salary increases have not been implemented
+  Transformed workforce, 45 employees in total, 44 

being black
−  Only 2 employees trained
+  0 staff members retrenched

Manufactured

−  High vacancy rate increased from 3% to 15%

−  Vandalised units due to the rental boycott
−  Rental collections went down from R29 million to 

R12.5 million
−  Rental collection down from 73% to 35%
−  Uthingo Park complex derecognised due to 

high vacancy rate and declining of collections 
which in turn affected the total assets.

social and relationship

+  Maintained full accreditation despite challenges
−  Decline in allocations
+  241 pairs of shoes and 20 scientific calculators 

handed over to 13 schools under the back to 
school project

+  Current Facebook following 1939

natural

+  Introduction of grey water harvesting

Rental boycotts and impact on our capital

Rental boycott can be defined as concerted action 
taken by tenants to abstain from paying rent. The rental 
boycotts currently being experienced are marred by 
violent conduct and threats against tenants in good 
standing including burning of units. The current 
situation has resulted in our collection rate to decrease 
from 73% to 35% comparing to the current reporting 
period 2019/20.
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The decline in collections had an impact on our capitals 
as highlighted above with the worst ever suffered by 
EHC. Revenue has declined and debtors balance has 
increased. Decline in revenue has affected our capability 
to run our corporate social responsibility leg. Due to the 
violent nature of the rental boycotts the vacancy rate 
tripled, units have been vandalised which have increased 
our maintenance bill and insurance claims.



18oUR sTaKeHolDeRs –  
THeIR neeDs anD 
exPecTaTIons

As a social housing institution we contribute to the 
national policy on housing and human settlements. We 
deeply operate in the societies we serve. Our ability to 
deliver value is dependent on our relationships, contrib-
utors and activities of our stakeholders. By providing to 
their needs and meeting their expectations we create 
value for our stakeholders.

staff
Their needs and expectations:

 ■ Career development and advancement opportunities
 ■ A safe and healthy work environment
 ■ Fair treatment, remuneration, effective performance 

management and recognitions
 ■ Work environment which embrace diversity
 ■ Transparency and stability.

Key objectives and metrics we track

 ■ A culture that is people centred and client driven
 ■ Positive and respectful attitude
 ■ Acceptable standard when performing jobs.

Tenants
Their needs and expectations:

 ■ Innovation solution
 ■ Excellence in services (maintenance & collections)
 ■ Effective communication
 ■ Value –for – money on the services rendered and 

accommodation provided
 ■ Transparency.

Key objectives and metrics we track

 ■ Tenant satisfaction ratings
 ■ Tenant complaints

Regulators
Their needs and expectations:

 ■ Compliance with all legal and regulatory 
requirements

 ■ Responsible taxpayers
 ■ Participation and contribution to indus-

try and regulatory working groups.



Key objectives and metrics we track

 ■ Tax contributions to be paid fully
 ■ Compliance with minimum regulatory requirements.

broader community
Their needs and expectations:

 ■ Well maintained and governed complexes which will 
enhance value of neighbourhood

 ■ Uses resources to promote social and environmental 
issues to build a thriving society

 ■ Partnering on common social and 
environmental issues.

Key objectives and metrics we track

 ■ Recognition as a leader in provision of rental 
accommodation

 ■ Recognition as a socially responsible institution.

We also look at branding as a value added aspect of 
selling our product and services to our relevant stake-
holders. The Emalahleni Housing Company brand is used 
to communicate with our staff, tenants, partners and the 
community in which we operate, through:

Website
The Emalahleni Housing Company website 
is used to keep our stakeholders and 
tenants informed of various 

activities and events that 
take place at Emalahleni 
Housing Company. Visit  
www.ehco.co.za to view our state 
of the art web page. Viewers can click through to our 
subsidiary company’s website, i.e. Likhaya Community 
Development to view how Emalahleni Housing 
Company is enriching the lives of the less 
fortunate in our community.

social network 
Platforms
Social media platforms are the 
fastest growing marketing and 
brand exposure methods for 
the 20th century. The Emalahleni 
Housing Company Facebook page 
and Twitter account has grown to 
be the “go to place” for our tenants 
and stakeholders. Emalahleni 
Housing Company also has a 
dedicated e-mail address where 
complaints, concerns and enquiries 
are attended to.

19
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ReflecTIons fRoM 
oUR cHaIRPeRson

2019/20 has been a challenge. When rental boycotts 
started in September 2018, we never anticipated same to 
last this long.

When 2019 started, as any new year we had a sense of 
renewed hopefulness and optimism that things will be 
better in the year ahead. We had great expectations that 
the rental boycotts would be over or at least improve. It 
was not to be in 2019/2020.

Non-paying tenants increased, vacancy rate increased, 
the debt book increased dramatically and our creditors 
increased as a result our operational instability.

This “slow strangle” on our operations has largely attribut-
ed to our poor performance. It has come as no surprise 
that the Group’s finances deteriorated during the year. 
In particular the increase in the debt book, increase in 
impairment of debtors and investment property had 
a negative impact on the Group’s overall performance 
in 2019/20.

The Group has managed to stave off closing its doors, 
however the negative outlook given the ongoing risks, 
particularly in the light of COVID – 19 pandemic, the jury 
is still out on our destiny.

We remain and are willing to confront the challenges and 
the uncertainty we are facing. We will, as always continue 
to look for ways to weather the storm and continue 
to operate.

17 Years of operations
EHC has been operating for 17 years; of these 15 years 
declaring a surplus. There is a certain amount of agility 
that has helped us navigate through challenges and 

speaks to our resilience, perseverance, courage and 
our sustainability.

leading with Intergrity 
and Humility
Integrity is doing what you say you’ll do. It is walking the 
talk. Humility is recognising that some ideas will come 
from other people it is being able to admit when you 
make a mistake.

Corporate conduct / governance continues to come 
under analysis. The board continues to lead ethically 
with emphasis on legal and statutory compliance and 

Desmond Khoza

“ We remain and are willing to confront the 
challenges and the uncertainty we are facing. 

Desmond Khoza, Chairperson, Emalahleni Housing Company ”



treatment of our employees. What remains important is 
our culture on risk. When making decisions we need to 
take into account materialised, emerging and new risks. 
Our responsibility and our commitment is to ensure that 
we deliver on our purpose by ensuring that our strategy 
is aligned to value creation and the core business of 
the Group.

In response to our financial challenges, the board of 
directors has not increased board sitting fees for period 
01 March 2019 – 29 February 2020 and fees are paid 
at the discretion of Management taking into account 
liquidity levels.

I would like to take this opportunity, to welcome 
Ms Katlego Majola and Ms Patience Ntuli to the EHC 
Board, which directors bring extensive knowledge and 
skills in risk management and finance.

Growth and Development
We need to grow and expand. Growth is fundamental to 
our survival.

As a Group we need to remove our reliance on one 
property to generate revenue. We have huge potential 
for growth and we need a proper strategy on how to 
grow, where to grow and we need to implement the 
strategy and maintain it.

Our growth strategy includes adding new locations and 
units. Given our current financial challenges, we need to 

add units at a steady pace 
to ensure that our growth 
goals are achievable and realistic.

a new normal
At the time of concluding this report we were 9 months 
into the COVID – 19 pandemic. We have witnessed the 
global human and economic catastrophe.

We had to change our way of doing things. Technology 
has been in the forefront and came to our aid. 
It assisted with connectivity, created access and 
knowledge sharing.

appreciation
Thank you to our 43 employees who remain committed 
to ensure this Group is still operating. I am proud to be 
your Chairperson. During the lockdown period, as a 
consequence of COVID-19, you showed your dedication, 
courage and tenacity by continuing to serve our tenants 
through a complex and difficult time.

To employees, SHRA, ELM and other stakeholders thank 
you for your support in these challenging times.

I believe that the Group is well positioned to still be 
sustainable and add value to our tenants, broader 
community, employees and other stakeholders. I look 
forward to a new year to work alongside our tenants 
which year is likely to be a roller coaster.

23
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our Purpose
To provide rental or co-operative housing options, for 
low to medium income households by developing and 
managing housing stock over long-term.

our Vision
To be a provincial leader in the social housing sector 
by establishing a diverse and competitive brand within 
sustainable communities.

our Values
 ■ Diversity and mutual respect
 ■ Dignity and fairness
 ■ Continuous, open and honest communication
 ■ Transparency
 ■ Accessibility and responsiveness
 ■ Accountability
 ■ Professionalism
 ■ Integrity

our brand Promise
Bridging the gap to a better life.

oUR PURPose, VIsIon  
anD ValUes
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Our purpose guides strategy and decision making. Our 
success depends on the degree to which we deliver val-
ue to society. The operating environment for 2019 – 2020 
was the most difficult and that has impacted on our 
ability to create value. However we are of the opinion 
that it is still vital to showcase our balance between 
long-term value creation and short term results. To 
enable same, it is important to understand our role in 
society and how society can be different because of the 
services we offer.

staff
Our 43 employees are key to EHC Group delivering on its 
purpose and making it a great place to work. A moti-
vated and skilled staff is vital to offer efficient services 
and operations thereby offering value to our clients. 
Staff contribute materially to the communities they live 
and work.

Value is created through:

 ■ Rewarding staff for the value they add
 ■ Creating job opportunities
 ■ Encouraging our staff to further their careers 

and improve our services and products.

Tenants
Our tenants remain our largest source of revenue which 
enable us to fund our operations. Gaining more tenants 
and deepening existing relationships result in greater 
revenue growth, while we offer excellent services to 
provide value for money to our tenants.

Value created through:

 ■ Safe guarding our collections to 
enable us to invest so we can 
expand our products

 ■ Providing services that meet our 
tenants clients specific needs

 ■ Maintaining our units at ac-
ceptable standards which units 
is the core of our business

Regulators
Regulators ensures good quality 
rental accommodation for the upper 
end of the low income market. They provide good 
governance, compliance support and confidence in the 
industry which in turn reduces potential reputational 
risk. We have a responsibility to comply with regulations 
and laws.

Value is created through:

 ■ Sustainable social housing practises and regulatory 
compliance which enables thriving industry

 ■ Sustainable allocation of consolidated capital 
grant to social housing institutions.

broader community
We are an active contributor to building a thriv-
ing society by providing quality, cheap, well 
maintained accommodation.

Value is created through:

 ■ Transforming society by providing accommodation 
for low income household while they improve 
prospects.

 ■ Playing a meaningful role in the broader society as 
an accommodation provider

 ■ Making a difference through our CSI activities

DelIVeRInG ValUe 
bY DelIVeRInG on 
oUR PURPose
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THRoUGH GooD 
GoVeRnance

The board strives to abide by good governance in 
achieving our purpose and maintaining a sustainable 
business model. Our strategy enables us to maintain 
focus in conducting operations underpinned by 
good governance.

our Governance Philosophy
EHC Group appreciates sound corporate governance and 
acknowledges that good corporate governance princi-
ples are the foundation on which the trust and confi-
dence of all stakeholders is built. Our board believes that 
by applying good corporate governance EHC’s Group 
reputation as a leading social housing company through 
excellence and integrity is built and provides the Group 

with legitimacy in the community. Highest standards 
of governance demand from us fairness, accountability, 
ethics, integrity and transparency.

We believe that good governance can contribute to 
achieving our purpose, vision and living our values 
through strong risk management, compliance, accounta-
bility and effective leadership.

The board’s governance oversight is guided by its 
commitment to its responsibilities and governance 
objectives. The objectives provide a mechanism to 
measure and evaluate performance in applying the 
King IV principles. Below is our compliance status 
with King IV.
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King IV – 16 Principles

Principle Description
Compliance 

Status
Extent of compliance

1.

The board should lead ethically 
and effectively.

Compliant The board does lead ethically and effectively. Minutes of all 
board meetings are kept and made available to those relevant 
stakeholders upon request. Should the board receive complaints 
against management or management be suspected of unethical 
behaviour an investigation will arise and disciplinary procedures 
will follow.

2.

The board should govern the ethics of the 
organisation in a way that supports the 
establishment of an ethical culture.

Compliant The board promotes the values of the Group as published. The 
Board demands accountability.

3.

The board should ensure that the 
organisation is and is seen to be a 
responsible corporate citizen.

Compliant The Board places emphasis to its management and staff 
regarding the legal and statutory requirements of the Group. Full 
accreditation has been maintained by maintaining compliance.

4.

The board should appreciate that the 
organisation’s core purpose, its risks and 
opportunities, strategy, business model, 
performance and sustainable development 
are all inseparable elements of the value 
creation process.

Partially 
compliant

There is a need to drill into management the culture of risk 
management. So that strategy setting incorporates risks and 
opportunities and its assessed by the Board to ensure that it 
is aligned to the value creation process and is line with the 
core business of the organisation. The investment policy now 
incorporates risk assessment before acquisition and before 
disposal of investment property to ensure maximum value 
creation for stakeholders.

5.

The board should ensure that reports issued 
by the organisation enable stakeholders 
to make informed assessments of the 
organisation’s performance and its short, 
medium and long term prospects.

Compliant The board ensures that the AFS of the Group complies with the 
IFRS which ensures that the information is in a format and of 
quality that enables stakeholders to make informed decisions. 
The AFS are audited by a reputable audit firm to ensure that they 
currently represent the financial position of the organisation. The 
organisation provides an Integrated Report which details the 
reasons for the current performance of the organisation as well as 
some of the opportunities for future organisational development. 

6.

The board should serve as the focal point 
and custodian of corporate governance in 
the organisation.

Compliant The board has ensured the development of policies and standard 
operating procedures within the organisation, good practises and 
compliance with corporate governance. The board endeavours 
to balance the interest of the organisation’s many stakeholders 
and assesses and takes into consideration the requirements of 
each stakeholder. 

7.

The board should comprise the 
appropriate balance of knowledge, skills, 
experience, diversity and independence 
for it to discharge its governance role and 
responsibilities objectively and effectively.

Compliant The board does comprise of the appropriate balance. This is 
something which is reviewed if some directors leave the board 
to ensure that the right balance of skills and experience is always 
present. The qualifications and experience of each director are 
detailed in this report. Individuals comprising the board have 
diverse skills and experience from legal, financial, construction, 
labour and risk management background.

8.

The board should ensure that arrangements 
for delegation within its own structures 
promote independent judgement and assist 
with balance of power and the effective 
discharged of its duties.

Compliant The board does comply in this regard as the chairperson of the 
board is an independent non-executive director. There are more 
non-executive directors making up the board than they are 
executive directors. Composition of the board complies with King 
IV report. The non-executive directors do not participate in the 
day to day operations of the organisation, however they hold 
executives accountable and might have to step in if necessary. 
The board also has multiple sub-committees to enable it to carry 
out its tasks efficiently and effectively.
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Principle Description
Compliance 

Status
Extent of compliance

9.

The board should ensure that the evaluation 
of its own performance and that its 
committees, its chair and its individual 
members, support continued improvement 
in its performance and effectiveness.

Partially 
compliant

The board’s performance evaluation is done once every 2 years 
by an independent party. Where valuations of its committees 
including itself is done. The performance of the individual 
directors is also evaluated. The last evaluation was in 2018 and 
one was due in 2020 but due to financial constraints same was 
not undertaken.

10.

The board should ensure that the 
appointment of and delegation to 
management contribute to clarify 
and the effective exercise of authority 
and responsibilities.

Partially 
compliant

The board ensures that each member of management has a 
relevant job description which they are aware of and are required 
to execute within certain levels of authority which are established. 
For the financial year 2019/2020 no performance evaluation and 
appraisal process was done to remove the legitimate expectation 
of performance bonuses. This situation needs to be changed 
and consultations with Union be revived to have the same 
understanding. It is vital that the performance evaluation and 
appraisal process resume as this ensures that management and 
staff are productive and achieve their set goals.

11.

The board should govern risk in a way that 
supports the organisation in setting and 
achieving its strategic objectives.

Partially 
compliant

The board does review the risks facing the organisation. The risks 
identified have been submitted to the auditors for review and 
documentation of the discussion of the risks is in the minutes of 
the meetings of the board of directors and / or audit committee 
meeting. Our risk report is further articulated on pages 51–53. 
The risks outlined in this report will be scrutinised at our strategic 
planning session 2021. There is however a need for management 
to take the risk culture seriously so that it is embedded in 
decisions which are taken.

12.

The board should govern technology and 
information in a way that supports the 
organisation setting and achieving its 
strategy objectives.

Not  
compliant

There is a need for the board to start governing technology. There 
is a need of risk analysis and discussion on back-up requirements 
of the organisation as well as the system currently being 
utilised by the organisation if it provides all the needs as per the 
business operations. 

13.

The board should govern compliance with 
applicable laws and adopted, non-binding 
rules, codes and standards in a way that 
supports the organisation being ethical and 
a good corporate citizen.

Compliant The board promotes compliance with relevant laws and statutory 
requirements. There is a need however to assess compliance with 
company policies. A compliance report is tabled at each board 
and / or audit committee to review and update the board on non-
compliance instances with rules and laws and to take corrective 
action when there is non-compliance. The board makes use of 
the Company Secretary to assist them in determining where 
the organisation falls short in terms of statutory compliance as 
well as annual compliance with the regulators compliance and 
Companies Act requirements.

14.

The board should ensure that the 
organisation remunerates fairly, responsibly 
and transparently so as to promote the 
achievement of strategic objectives and 
positive outcomes in the short, medium and 
long term. 

Compliant The board has a Human Resources and Remuneration Committee 
which sets the remuneration of executive directors and non- 
executive directors which is approved by the board. Director’s 
remuneration is disclosed in the annual financial statements, 
of the Group to promote transparency. The board considers 
performance of the organisation, internal dynamics and 
requirements from staff in setting remuneration. 

15.

The board should ensure that assurance 
services and functions enable an effective 
control environment, and that these support 
the integrity of information for internal 
decision-making and of the organisation’s 
external reports.

Compliant The board makes use of an audit committee which appoints 
internal and external auditors of the organisation. The controls 
and integrity of information is reviewed by the auditors and 
reported to management and the board for effective decision 
making. The board considers all management letter points 
received from the auditors of the organisation and takes 
necessary action to mitigate the risk and / or lack of control that 
has been identified.

16.

In the execution of its governance role 
and responsibilities, the board should 
adopt a stakeholder-inclusive approach 
that balances the needs, interests and 
expectations of material stakeholders in the 
best interest of the organisation over time.

Compliant The board takes a stakeholder inclusive approach to its corporate 
governance role. Some of the stakeholders identified include 
tenants, staff, suppliers, regulators. The staff is always considered 
when decisions are made as the staff is the one that makes the 
organisation tick.



collective Responsibilities 
of the board
Our board works to fulfil its primary governing roles 
and responsibilities within the four corners of King IV. 
It has a Board Charter which sets out its roles and 
responsibilities namely:

 ■ Having the ultimate accountability and responsibility 
for the performance and affairs of the Group.

 ■ Exercising leadership, enterprise, integrity, sound 
judgement in the context of transparency 
and accountability.

 ■ Oversee, approve, monitor and review corporate 
strategy, policies, annual budget and business plans.

 ■ Ensuring compliance with all relevant laws, regula-
tions and codes of good practise.

 ■ Monitor and maintain an effective group – wide 
risk management framework and key risk 
areas and key performance indicators of the 
business are identified and monitored.

During the cycle of its activities our board over and 
above our regular agenda items had the following 
important discussions:

first quarter – 01 March 
2019 – 31 May 2019

 ■ Decision is made to insource refuse removal to 
cut costs.

 ■ Reserves are withdrawn to sustain operations.
 ■ An increase in board sitting fees is agreed but imple-

mentation is suspended until the financial position of 
the Group has improved.

 ■ Payment of normal Board sitting fees is left to 
Management’s discretion depending on liquidity 
levels, however travelling costs and toll gates are 
agreed to be paid immediately when they accrue.

 ■ 2% of projected surplus paid over to Likhaya is sus-
pended until EHC’s financial position has improved

 ■ 2% deducted from supplier invoices and paid over to 
Likhaya is deferred for 6 months.

 ■ Rental increase of 5.5% is agreed upon but imple-
mentation was only to start 01 June 2019.

 ■ Major purchases such as new vehicle to be utilised by 
the CEO is suspended until EHC’s finances are back 
to normal.

 ■ The building of Likhaya / Limelight 
Head office is suspended.

second quarter – 01 June 
2019 – 31 august 2019

 ■ 5.5% rental increase implementation date is moved to 
01 September 2019.

 ■ Board approves private investigation terms of 
reference into vandalism taking place at Uthingo Park.

 ■ Security being given to the CEO is withdrawn.

Third quarter – 01 september 
2019 – 31 november 2019

 ■ Board resolves to seek assistance from SHRA and 
Department of Human Settlements.
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 ■ 50% discount is offered to tenants on arrears starting 
01 November 2019 going backward is approved.

 ■ 6% salary increases is agreed with effect from 01 
March 2019 but implementation is suspended until 
the financial status of EHC has improved. Wage 
Settlement Agreement is signed.

 ■ Payment of 2018 performance bonus was approved 
but payment is suspended until EHC’s financial status 
has improved

 ■ Its resolved that Likhaya’s community development 
initiatives be focused on the general public than 
tenants given the current financial situation of EHC.

fourth quarter – 01 December 
2019 – 29 february 2020

 ■ CFO is appointed as public officer of EHC with SARS.
 ■ Finance and Investment Committee is tasked to 

track the financial position of the Group and this 
matter is agreed to be a standing agenda point at all 
Board meetings.

 ■ Notarial deed of servitude of restraint which 
deed was initiated by SHRA to safe guard 
against Municipality transferring Uthingo Park 
to a third party is ratified by the Board.

board Independence
The majority of our board members are independent 
directors which is in compliance with King IV and best 
governance practice. We maintain a unitary Board, which 
consists of combination of both the executive directors 
and non – executive directors with majority being 
independent non -executive directors.

As of 01 March 2019 – 29 February 2020 our board 
composition was as follows:-

 ■ 9 board members in total
 ■ 7 independent non-executive directors
 ■ 2 executive directors

board Diversity – being Relevant 
in a Transforming society
EHC is committed to promoting diversity at board level, 
with diversity and inclusion being key considerations 
in our board selection processes. As per principle 7 
of King IV, promotion of gender and race diversity at 
board level has been incorporated. At 29 February 2020 
diversity at board level and demographics:

Black executive board members 2 22%

Black women executive 
board members 1 11%

Black independent non-executive 
board members 5 56%

White male independent non-
executive board members 2 22%

As at approval date of this report:

Black executive board members 2 25%

Black women executive 
board members 1 13%

White male independent non-
executive board members 1 13%

Black independent non-executive 
board members 5 62%

board Knowledge, skills 
and experience
In the reporting period we had the following skills on 
the Board:

 ■ Finance
 ■ Risk management
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 ■ Law
 ■ Labour
 ■ Construction
 ■ Town planning

In our industry we need a broad range of skills to en-
sure and create value in the interest of all stakeholders. 

The board determines the required composition 
of skills in response to the current needs and long 
term strategy.

Having the appropriate mix of skills and experience 
ensures that the board as a collective is well equipped to 
guide the organisations strategy to create value.

executive and non-executive Directors – age (Years)

Average age = 49 years

30 40 50 60 70

Executive Non-Executive

non-executive Directors – Time on board

41–3 years

4–6 years 2

7–9 years 1

10–12 years 1

Independent non-executive Directors

executive Directors

Mzimkulu Xaba
Chief Executive Officer 

57 years 
Business

Zanele Shongwe
Chief Financial Officer 

36 years 
Finance

board Tenure and experience

Desmond Khoza
Chairperson 

40 years 
Legal

Lucas Chauke
Chair: Technical Committe 

66 years 
Quantity Surveyor

Thabo Mokoena 
Chair: Remco 

49 years 
Labour

Katlego Majola
Chair: Audit and  
Risk Committee 

36 years 
Risk Management

Patience Ntuli
Chair: Finance and 

Investment Committee 
39 years 
Finance

Johan Malan
70 years 

Architecture



32

Non-executive directors are given fixed term period 
of 3 years and automatically retire from office no later 
than the third annual general meeting in terms of the 
memorandum of incorporation. A retired director can 
be reappointed.

Board changes since 29 February 2020:

Additions: 
 ■ Katlego Majola – 29 October 2020
 ■ Patience Ntuli – 29 October 2020

Resignations: 
 ■ Michiel Bosch – 07 September 2020
 ■ Simangele Sekgobela – 20 April 2020
 ■ Hazel Zitha – 03 July 2020

Risk Management – 
fundamental In the 
Implemantation of strategy
The board considers risk management as an integral part 
of our strategy. The board governs risks through its Audit 
and Risk Committee.

Our risk strategy focuses on emerging risk, threats and 
opportunities. Consequently with the current challeng-
ing environment we are operating in, marred by rental 
boycotts, and financial challenges the risk universe 
covered by the organisation has grown and now 
includes the following risks:

 ■ People risk (updated for impact of COVID – 19)
 ■ Liquidity risk
 ■ Business risk
 ■ Operational risk

 ■ Strategic execution risk
 ■ Regulatory, accountability and compliance 

risk (updated for impact of COVI-19)

our approach to compliance – 
adhering to all applicable 
laws and Regulations
Our board approved Compliance Policy commits us to 
the following key objectives:

 ■ Comply with legal and regulatory requirements
 ■ Comply with voluntary standards
 ■ Establish accountability for compliance and evidence
 ■ Facilitate the detection and prevention of 

non-compliance of regulatory requirement

We monitor and report on compliance through the 
Audit and Risk Committee. In addition as a regulated 
organisation we comply with several notices and 
regulatory requirements. We provide a regulatory tool to 
our regulator on a quarterly basis.

ethics – leading by example
The board sets the tone and leads the Group ethically, 
effectively and responsibly. This is aligned to King IV 
principle 1. A continued enhancement of an ethical 
culture remains top of mind for the Group. At our next 
strategy meeting we will come up with tools to fulfil on 
ethical performance.



conflict of Interest – exercising 
care and Managing effectively
According to our board approved Conflict of Interest 
Policy the relationship between employees, direc-
tors and the company is based on mutual interest. 
Employees and directors are required to declare any 
private interest that might affect the performance of the 
duties. They are also required to take steps to resolve any 
conflicts that arise.

At the first meeting of each new financial year directors 
must declare all the relevant interest in the register 
of interest register. At each board meeting a director 
is required to disclose to the Board / Committee the 
existence of an interest and all material facts that may 
give rise to an actual or possible conflict of interest. 
Declaration of interest is a standing item on our Board / 
Committee agenda. Once a declaration of an interest has 
been made and presentations to the Board are made the 
director leaves the meeting during the discussion of, and 
vote on the said conflict of interest.

Once a conflict of interest is declared to exist, the Board / 
Committee shall make a decision as to whether the 
director must desist or stop engaging in the activity 
leading to the conflict of interest or come make recom-
mendations / put up conditions as to how the director 
will conduct himself / herself

board effectiveness
The size of our board during the period under reporting 
was 9. The size gives the board 
adequate membership 
to its five board 

committees while maintaining adequate levels of 
independence.

Board evaluation is done once every two years with the 
last one having being carried out in 2018. Due to the 
current financial challenges being faced by the organ-
isation the 2020 board evaluation was not performed. 
Hopefully we are able to conduct same in 2021.

fair and Responsible 
Remuneration
The board strives to ensure that remuneration is fair and 
transparent. For the financial year starting 01 March 2019 
to 29 February 2020, it was agreed as follows:

 ■ Performance bonuses for the year starting 01 March 
2018 to February 2019, which bonuses were due to 
be payable in the financial year starting, 01 March 
2019 will be payable when the financial position of 
the organisation has improved.

 ■ Basic salary (including 13thcheques, provident and 
overtime rate) was increased by 6% (six percent) 
across the board. The implementation of the increase 
was suspended until the Group can afford to pay its 
salaries and performance bonuses.

 ■ Payment will be done in segments which shall be 
agreed upon taking into account the rate of recovery 
of the Group.

 ■ New board sitting fees were approved for 2019/2020 
financial year but implementation of same was sus-
pended until the Group’s financial position improves.

Remuneration of employees, executives and the Board 
is linked to sustainable value creation objectives being 
mindful of the current status of the organisation.
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oUR boaRD anD 
boaRD coMMITTees

audit and Risk committee
Chaired by Simangele Sekgobela (resigned 20 April 2020)

 ■ Oversees integrated reporting of the  organisation’s current policies 
and procedure and the effectiveness and completeness of the 
internal control environment.

 ■ Oversees the risk management plan of the organisation.
 ■ Oversees the performance assessment of internal audit.
 ■ Reviews the effectiveness and quality of the audit process.
 ■ Reviews the effectiveness of the systems for monitoring compliance 

with the law and regulations.
 ■ Reviews the organisation’s financial statements and other official 

financial information provided to the public.

finance and Investment committee
Chaired by Michiel Bosch (resigned 07 September 2020)

 ■ Oversees the preparation of the annual budget and 
financial statements.

 ■ Reviews the organisation’s budget.
 ■ Reviews and approves any special expenditure.
 ■ Monitors the organisation’s compliance with its finance policies.
 ■ Assists the Board in considering investment opportunities.
 ■ Assists the Board to approve acquisitions, disposals and 

capital expenditure.
 ■ Reviews investment strategy of the organisation in terms of the 

broad objectives to be met and areas of focus for investments 
and acquisitions.

The Board committees assist the board in the discharge of its duties and responsibilities. Each board committee has 
formal written terms of reference. These terms of reference delegate certain responsibilities as follows:-
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Technical committee
Chaired by Lucas Chauke

 ■ Monitors compliance with the organisation’s property mainte-
nance and property development policies as well as relevant 
legislature with regards to projects.

 ■ Ensures that technical due diligence has been carried out in 
connection with major projects.

 ■ Gives advice on risk management with regards to 
major projects.

 ■ Reviews projects in the pipeline.

nominations committee
Chaired by Desmond Khoza

 ■ Ensures the establishment of a formal process for the appoint-
ment of directors.

 ■ Oversees the development of an induction program for 
new directors.

 ■ Oversees the development and implementation of continued 
professional development programs for directors.

 ■ Ensures formal succession plan for the Board, CEO and Senior 
Management appointments.

Remuneration committee
Chaired by Thabo Mokoena

 ■ Reviews strategic human resources practises.
 ■ Reviews and recommends overall remuneration strategies, 

policies and practices of the organisation and measures and 
assesses executive management performance.

 ■ Ensures key management personnel remuneration.
 ■ Monitors, reviews and makes recommendations regarding the 

remuneration of non-executive directors.
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oUR GRoUP 
execUTIVe coMMITTee

Our Executive Committee comprises the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, GM 
Operations and Facilities and GM Business and Community Development. At year end:

Mzimkulu xaba – 55 years
11 years’ service at EHC

Qualifications:
 ■ Master in Business Management (MBA) Regenesys Business School
 ■ Degree in Training and Development BTD (HRD) (North West 

University)
 ■ Secondary Teachers Diploma STD (Ngwenya College of Education)

Rekayi Tsokodayi – 36 years
2 years’ service at EHC

Qualifications:
 ■ Baccalaureus Legum (with distinction) (University of Pretoria)
 ■ Academic Honorary Colours LLB 4 years curriculum (University of 

Pretoria)
 ■ CIS Professional Post – Graduate Qualification Company Secretarial 

and Governance Practice (CSSA)
 ■ Risk, Compliance and Governance Certificate(Wits)

Zanele shongwe – 34 years
12 years’ service at EHC

Qualifications:
 ■ National Diploma Cost and Management 

Accounting (Vaal University of Technology)
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Thabiso Motsoeneng – 40 years
12 years’ service at EHC

Qualifications:
 ■ Certificate in Health and Safety (SAMTRAC) (NOSA)
 ■ Certificate on Project Management (Regenesys Business School)
 ■ Certificate in Incident and Investigation (NOSA)

laya chetty
10 years’ service at EHC

Qualifications:
 ■ Bachelor of Business Administration 

(Cum Laude) (Regenesys Business School)
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Board of Directors 
Back Row from left: Lucas Chauke, Michiel Bosch, Johan Malan and Simangele Sekgobela 
Front Row from left: Thabo Mokoena, Mzimkulu Xaba, Desmond Khoza and Zanele Shongwe 
Absent at the time photo was taken: Katlego Majola and Patience Ntuli
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Executive Management:
Back Row from left: Zanele Shongwe and Thabiso Motsoeneng
Front Row from left: Rekayi Tsokodayi, Mzimkulu Xaba and Laya Chetty
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cReaTInG ValUe 
In a sUsTaInable 

ManneR THRoUGH 
oUR sTRaTeGY
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The reporting year will go down in the history of the 
company as one of most disturbing, difficult and painful. 
Of the many diverse and fascinating challenges the 
company encountered, was the monster called rental 
boycott. Almost 70% of tenants stopped paying rentals 
from as far back as October 2018. At the end of the 
financial year the average rental collection was at 34.78% 
with the loss of income equivalent to R23million.

These were well organised, funded and instigated 
initiatives where the Developer working with other 
structures tried to muscle into the business interests. 
Dating back from October 2018, the plan was clearly to 
intensify the rental boycott with a view to collapse the 
Uthingo Park project. Uthingo Park is the catalyst project 
of EHC with 1204 units allocated in the complex. 95% of 
revenue of EHC is generated by this project. Efforts were 
made without success, to escalate the uprising to other 
complexes such as Lesedi Court 1 & 2 that are located in 
Klarinet Ext 6.

The rental boycott was a reflection of what is happening 
throughout the country. The intentions of the instigators 
were to hijack the project under the pretence that poor 
people would benefit through housing ownership (as 
opposed to rental), while the objective is to loot and 
serve their selfish interests.

The State Capture Commission shows how South Africa’s 
civil services was systematically repurposed away from 
service delivery to benefit the elite through systematic, 
illegal and unethical activities and practices.

A shadow state secretly and strategically co-ordinated 
such actions using people located in significant 

ReflecTIons fRoM oUR 
cHIef execUTIVe offIceR

Mzimkulu Xaba
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centres of power. The failure of our effort to canvass 
intervention and source funding from state organs 
was a demonstration of the modus operandi where 
the most powerful and corrupt businessmen will 
influence the environment and frustrate all the efforts to 
resolve matters.

litigation
In the year under review a significant amount of time 
was spend in court. At some point there were 18 
cases that ranges from the land availability agreement, 
settlement agreement, arson, hijacking and renaming of 
Uthingo Park, evictions, assault and intimidation.

 ■ The biggest highlight and milestone of the year was 
the judgement handed down by Judge Brinkman, in 
April 2019, to interdict the transfer of Uthingo Park by 
the Developer. This was a watershed judgement as 
it halted the corrupt practice and sent the message 
that the judicial system of South Africa is effective 
and not biased.

 ■ Other judgements that turned the tide was handed 
over in favour of EHC interdicting both the directors 
of Anchropops (the Developers) and 43 tenants, to 
stop interfering with our business, (i.e. stop intimidat-
ing paying tenants, refrain from blocking the access 
control and allow employees of EHC to do their 
business without intimidation).

 ■ With regards to the litigation surrounding the Land 
Availability Agreement (LAA) the matter is in the 
process of being settled out of court. The Settlement 
Agreement was presented to court on the 14 
December 2020 and the agreement is scheduled 
to be made an order of court on the 17 December 
2020. The Settlement Agreement would reduce 
legal costs for Emalahleni Housing Company (EHC).

Rental Tribunal
 ■ 43 warrant of executions were issued by the 

Rental Tribunal and those orders were not 
executed due to application to review and set 
aside those orders by the residents of Uthingo 
Park with the case filed in October 2019.

notarial 
long lease 
of Property
Notarial Long Lease of Property was drafted and 
submitted to the local municipality for their considera-
tion as per the recommendation of the working group 
that constituted various government departments – as a 
directive from the president.

The 30-year lease agreement is in line with the Council 
Resolution of the 25 July 2019. The long lease agreement 
was drafted to give effect to the Social Housing Act 
and to confirm the rights and obligations of both the 
lessor and lessee and to ensure the property is used for 
rental purposes.

Turnaround strategy
The 2020 financial year, became one of most trying for 
the company where everything was under the threat of 
collapse. Two of the highest costs drivers that we could 
not avoid were expensive legal services and security 
services. In an attempt to protect the property, the 
company increased security and lodged several legal 
matters in court at the huge costs.

In light of the above management, was instructed to 
draft a turnaround strategy in order to mitigate the risks 
as brought about by the rental boycott. The turnaround 
plan is focused on rehabilitation and renewal. Thus it 
entails ensuring financial sustainabil-
ity by reducing operational costs, 
improving revue generation 
and intensify customer 
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service, however in the face of intimidation and threats 
to our staff.

Summary of the turnaround strategy was as follows:

 ■ Offering 50% discount on arrears from 
November 2019.

 ■ Relaxation of deposit payment term to three months
 ■ Intensifying visits to non-paying tenants.
 ■ Increase in allocation of new units by 60 tenants 

per month.
 ■ Intensifying communication by sending bulk SMSs to 

update tenants on discount offers and to encourage 
rental payments.

 ■ Cutting of electricity of all defaulters and audit of 
illegal electrical connections.

 ■ Invite and encourage tenants to make payment 
arrangements.

 ■ Strengthened debt collections by using external 
service providers.

 ■ Identify properties for disposal to increase cashflow
 ■ Manage cost drivers and make payment arrange-

ments with our creditors.
 ■ An amount of R2 500 000 should be 

generated per month (without fail) as the 
breakeven to keep the company going.

financial Performance
After 12 months, we budgeted a surplus of R8m the 
actual results for the period was a deficit of R 80m.

The executive summary of the financials are the reflec-
tions of the poor performance of the company due to 
undesirable rental collection.

 ■ The average rental collection rate of 34.73% was 
realised with an increase of R2m in trade receivables 
from the previous year.

 ■ Even though the expenditure was less than 
budgeted, the company has been struggling 
to meet its financial obligations when due.

lesson learnt in the Wake of 
Rental boycott in Particular 
areas that need Improvements

 ■ Must support the economic development of low-in-
come communities by ensuring that they are close to 
job opportunities, markets and transport and by stim-
ulating job opportunities to emerging entrepreneurs.

 ■ Must ensure the involvement of residents in the 
social housing institution and/ or key stakeholders in 
the broader environment through defined mean-
ingful consultation, information sharing, education, 
training and skill transfer.

 ■ Must support mutual acceptance of roles and 
responsibilities of tenants and social landlords, 
on the basis of the general provisions for the 
relationship between residence and social housing 
institution as defined in the Rental Act, 1999 (Act 
91 of 1999) as well as in Social housing Act.

In conclusion the organisation needs to draw inspiration 
from the words of Winston Churchill when he said: 
“Never let a good crisis go to waste”.

Milton Friedman further expand on inspiration and 
encouragement in the mist of adversity. He said: “only 
a crisis – actual or perceived produces the real change”. 
When the crisis occurs, the actions that are taken depend 
on the ideas that are lying around.

EHC have survived the biggest onslaught of its life time. 
The rental boycott and land ownership were the most 
difficult test in the history of the company. We must with 
our heads above the sand.

No. Description of targets Set targets Achievement Variance

1. Rental invoicing R41 million R35 million -R6 million

2. Overall Expenditure R42 million R124 million -R82 million

3. Surplus / (Deficit) R8 million (R80 million) -R72 million

4. Rental collections R36 million R12 million -R23 million

5. Sundry income R8 million R7.9 million -R100 000

6. Vacancy rate 5% 15% -10%



45

We have indeed learnt from the wise words–Courage 
“is the choice and willingness to confront agony, pain, 
danger, uncertainty, or intimidation.” In our case is the 
choice and willingness to go into unchartered territory 
(branching out).

Vote of Thanks
EHC is indebted to the courage and support received 
from the executive mayor Ms Linah Malatji with her 
resolute to stand her ground in the face of adversity 
and attach from various quarters even within the 
 municipality. Viva Mbokodo!

The constant support from SHRA in particular the CEO 
Rory Gallagher must be applauded and appreciated. 
EHC would not be where it is today if it was not the 
ethical and principled position to fight corruption – as 
unleashed by Mr Gallogher. Thank you, social housing, in 
the province owes much for its existence.

NASHO has added value and landed support through 
various intervention in respect of rental boycott studies 
and many academic papers that has enriched our 
understanding to resolve the impasse.

I feel pity for my colleagues and entire staff who lost it at 
times and felt disillusioned as the impasse is still with us. I 
want to express my profound appreciation for the choice 
of hanging in there and continue with their work during 
the difficult time. It was indeed a litmus test that you 
have but unaware, you have passed it with flying colours.

Leadership demonstrated by the board during the dark-
est period instilled hope to me and entire management 
team that tomorrow will be better than today.

“ eHc is indebted to the courage and 
support received from the executive mayor 
Ms linah Malatji with her resolute to stand 

her ground in the face of adversity. ”
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ResPonDInG To THe 
IMPacT of coVID-19

What We Have Done 
in Response
Although falling outside the reporting period we are 
required to report on events after the reporting period, 
being events favourable and unfavourable that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and date when 
the financial statements and this report are authorised for 
issue, and COVID – 19 pandemic is one of these events.

From March 2020 we have witnessed the impact of 
the COVID – 19 pandemic on individuals, businesses, 
societies, countries and the world as whole and infection 
and death rates rose. To curb the spread of the disease 
the Government imposed a lockdown.

Our offices were closed from 27 March 2020 to 03 June 
2020 and we have continued to work tirelessly to ensure 
that we contribute to the curbing of the pandemic. Our 
prime focus has been on health and safety of our staff 
and ensuring the continuous and uninterrupted provi-
sion of services to our tenants.

We have implemented precautions and preventative 

actions to help ensure the health and wellbeing of our 

staff, tenants and other stakeholders as follows:

 ■ Employee roster system was introduced under level 3

 ■ Since March 2020 meetings are conducted virtually to 

limit physical contact

 ■ Screening of employees and visitors at reception

 ■ Daily contact register is kept

 ■ Screens installed in offices of those employees who 

deal with tenants

 ■ Wearing of a mask is mandatory

 ■ Seeing of tenants on appointment basis under level 2 

was introduced

 ■ We have increased focus on sanitation and 

health practises

 ■ Tenants who have provided proof, as requested, 

that they are affected by COVID – 19 have been 

requested to pay what they can afford in rentals 

until their situation improves after which a 

payment plan on arrears will be agreed upon.
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Impact of coVID – 19 
on our capitals:

financial capital

As we were already experiencing cashflow challenges 
caused by rental boycotts. Rental collections at the start 
of the pandemic were projected to decrease due to 
lockdown restrictions.

The lockdown impact on different industries within the 
country meant possible reductions in income for our 
tenants. Some of our tenants whose accounts were in 
good standing before lockdown fell into arrears due to 
reduced income.

Tenants were encouraged to use electronic platforms to 
communicate with the Group and to pay their accounts. 
Arrangements have also been put in place with tenant’s 
whose income has been affected by COVID-19 to 
regularise accounts.

We have entered into payment arrangements with our 
major creditors with a view to reduce the burden on our 
cash flows.

Manufactured capital

Rendering service to our tenants became difficult due 
to lockdown. Essential employees were available for 
emergency services.

Intellectual capital

We had to enable our operating systems to allow em-
ployees to work from home. Specific employees could 
access tenant balances from home and assisted tenants. 
Collection during lockdown were done by Managers 
from home.

Human capital

As the safety and wellbeing of our employees is our 
utmost priority, a COVID-19 workplace preparedness 
plan based on Regulation 10 (8) of section 27 (2) of the 

Disaster Management 
Act, 2002 (Act No. 57 of 
2002) issued by the Minister 
of Cooperative Governance and 
Traditional Affairs–Dr Nkosazana Dlamini Zuma was 
drafted and implemented on reopening. Same was 
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2020.

Evident effects of the pandemic on date of 
reporting were:

 ■ working remotely became the new norm;
 ■ improvements in our systems to allow some employ-

ees to work online;
 ■ employee communications by way of sms system 

was implemented;
 ■ Seven reported cases who have fortunately all 

recovered; and
 ■ Low staff morale due to fear of infection.

Employees were further encouraged to make use 
of electronic platforms to communicate with other 
employees.

social and relationship capital

Our audit had to be done offsite during lockdown. This 
had an impact on the finalisation of the audit which in 
turn affected our ability to finalised and lodge the AFS 
on time.

natural capital

The COVID-19 pandemic had 
no significant impact on 
natural capital.
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oUR sTRaTeGIc focUs 
aReas anD enableRs

To achieve our strategy of being a provincial leader 
in the social housing sector, and our intent to build 
communities by providing sustainable, quality housing 
and diversify products and services as to meet the needs 
and expectations of our stakeholders, we developed 
six strategic focus arears that drive the activities in our 
value – creation business model. These strategic focus 
areas are underpinned by strategic enablers which are 
foundational enablers that will be critical to supporting 
the achievements of our strategy in the short term, 
medium and long term targets.

Strategic Enablers:

 ■ Improving our operational efficiencies
 ■ Enhancing our financial performance
 ■ Prioritising our tenants and providing them with the 

best services
 ■ Ensuring regulating compliance
 ■ Developing our people

Improving our operational 
efficiencies
We aspire to be a provincial leader in the social housing 
sector with the aim to increase our stock, diversify prod-
ucts and cross subsidise same to increase social housing 
stock. To enable us to achieve that we need to improve 
our operations which call for optimising processes, people, 
financials and technology. We need to carry out tenants’ 
audits, regularly train our people and retain employees, 
reward top performers while discouraging unproductive 
habits. The key outcomes namely to provide innovative 
service solutions for tenants, from accounts administration, 
billing, maintenance and allocations.

enhancing our financial 
Performance
It is of importance that we improve our financial position 
and cash flow. We need to recover as much as we can of 
the outstanding debt and improve on our collections. 
Because of the huge amount of the debt which our 
tenants owe we need consider payment terms and 
discounts. To improve our financial performance we 

need to continue reducing or rearranging our expenses 
hence we need to work out which of our expenses we 
can reduce and rearrange.

Prioritising Tenants 
and Providing Them 
with best services
As the saying goes “your customers are your ultimate 
boss”. As much as we might not literally report to our 
tenants we are aware and realise that they can send our 
business to the wall. We need to understand our tenant’s 
behaviour such as how did they discover our products, 
how do they order our business and how they pay us. 
That way we are in a position to plan and setup internal 
processes that best suit them. In the meantime we have 
come up with a Customer Solutions department which is 
to undertake:

 ■ Tenant audit
 ■ Check the quality of units before occupa-

tion by tenants to reduce complaints

Our key outcome is to have a mutual beneficial 
relationships with tenants and provide unique 
tenant experiences.

ensuring Regulatory compliance
It is critical for every organisation to implement adequate 
and effective structures and to embed a culture of 
compliance. We have managed to ensure compliance 
with our regulator SHRA and maintain our full accred-
itation status. This has been made possible through 
our regulatory universe. Gaps have been identified in 
our compliance with SARS (tax administration) where a 
payment arrangement had to be concluded.

Key outcomes are to manage reputational damage, 
avoid penalties and safeguarding tenants from losses. 
Additional measures must be put in place however to 



ensure that internal policies are being complied with. 
We need to evaluate company policies and procedures. 
There is a need to share the responsibility of compliance 
arears to different employees which allows each employ-
ee to have a sense of ownership and pride in developing 
expertise in a specific area.

Developing our People
We believe that a successful performance management 
for employees and the organisation involves activities 
that ensure goals are met efficiently and effectively. It is 
an ongoing process essential to achieving the Group‘s 
mission hence it is much more than just an end – of- year 
performance review.

Our strategic focus area for 2021, is to keep employees 
engaged in their work and help them grow within the 
Group. We intend as indicated in our corporate govern-
ance report to resume performance appraisals hence we 
will set quarterly goals, offer opportunities for individual 
growth and hold frequent review meetings. We need 
to change the purpose of our performance reviews and 
change it from just evaluation of employees but rather 
focus on developing employees.

Our key outcomes being continuing growth, produc-
tivity, retaining organisational experience and expertise 
and improve employee engagement and motivation. 
Resulting in sustainable like-for like growth.

Reflecting on 2019/2020 
and looking ahead
Stabilising our operations and increasing revenue 
collection remains our major focus. We still have loyal 
tenants and many people who still require our services. 
In 2019/2020 our focus has been to resolve land rights 
over Uthingo Park which is one of the reasons which was 
utilised by those who started rental boycotts. We are on 
the brink of settling these matters out of court, which 
will resolve the issue of land rights and confirm the 
Group’s rights over Uthingo Park.

Our focus in 2020/2021 is to mend the relationship with 
our tenants and mend the reputational damage done to 
the Group. Looking forward we will continue to build on 
the positive momentum gained through the impending 
resolution of our major legal cases involving land rights 
further leveraging EHC’s brand and purpose to be the 
provincial leader in social housing.
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50oUR sTRaTeGIc  
focUs aReas – KeY  
PeRfoRMance InDIcaToRs

Our long – term objectives is to create value for our 
tenants, employees, business and society by providing 
sustainable, quality housing and diversified products and 
services. In the short and medium term we aim to deliver 
improvement in cash flows and better relationship with 
stakeholders while maintaining the integrity of the 
business and focusing on delivering.

enhancing our financial 
Performance – enabler
We continue to try and increase our balance sheet, 
reducing debt to ensure survival of the organisation, 
financial stability required to support overall strategy.

Key performance indicators

 ■ Cash resources
 ■ Net debt levels
 ■ Collection rate

Value creation

 ■ Revenue growth
 ■ Expansion of the Group

Improving our operated 
efficiencies – enabler
Our quest is to identify problems and create solutions 
to improve efficiency. We endeavour to improve 
our processes.

Key Performance Indicators

 ■ Yield–number of tenants which receive service 
per day

 ■ On time delivering of units for allocations
 ■ Optimising maintenance schedules

Value creation

 ■ Organisation gains productivity
 ■ Optimisation of time
 ■ Enabling more allocations

Developing our 
People – enablers
Our employees are our business. We focus on em-
ploying and developing the right people and career 



development. We aim to structure the organisation to 
support operational excellence.

Key performance indicators

 ■ Training and development
 ■ Retention rates
 ■ Productivity rates

Value creation

 ■ Training drives productivity
 ■ Customer perceived quality
 ■ Service volume

ensuring Regulatory 
compliance – enablers
We will continue to ensure that we aware of and 
take steps to comply with relevant laws, policies 
and regulations

Key performance indicators

 ■ Number of non-compliance issues opened
 ■ Number of employees relations issues opened
 ■ Percentage of outstanding post audit- issues

Value creation

 ■ Reduces legal problems, 
penalties, lawsuits

 ■ Improved operations and safety
 ■ Better public relations

Prioritising our Tenants 
and Providing Them 
with best services
Our tenants are our core business. Results show that 
client prioritisation ultimately lead to more clients 
and profitability.

Key Performance Indicators

 ■ Satisfaction improvement
 ■ Tenant retention
 ■ Cash flow increase

Value creation

 ■ Support revenue growth
 ■ Servicing and protecting our tenant relationships
 ■ Key driver of ongoing sustainable profitability
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52cHallenGes on 
collecTIons 
anD allocaTIons

The 2019/20 financial year can be documented 
as the most challenging period in the history of 
the  organisation.

The rental boycott at Uthingo Park impacted on EHC as 
an organisation in more ways than one. In addition to 
the financial loss, the operational staff were faced with 
threats from protestors, vandalism and illegal occupancy 
of empty units and numerous complaints of victimisa-
tion from paying tenants.

The above proved to be an immense challenge to 
manage and impacted on the personal wellbeing of 
employees. Some employees and security personnel 
were physically assaulted and their vehicles were 
damaged by protestors. These actions also resulted in 
one security officer being permanently disabled. EHC 
personnel received professional trauma counselling in 
order to cope with the ongoing stress and fear that was 
instilled into them by protestors.

Allocation of units was another challenge where newly 
allocated tenants were victimised and threatened soon 

after they took occupation of units which resulted in 
them requesting refunds. Protestors also barricaded the 
entrance and exit points at the main gate preventing 
tenants from going to work and school. With the 
excessive negative media coverage that the protests 
attracted, most prospective tenants were hesitant to 
apply for units at Uthingo Park. Much work will have to 
be done in terms of repairing the reputational damage 
to EHC to ensure that our tenants feel safe and secure 
within our complexes.

The unlawful barricading of the access control points 
also placed a heavy burden on service delivery as 
it was almost impossible to perform maintenance 
activities as EHC personnel were denied access to 
the complex.

The anticipated negative impact of COVID -19 and a na-
tionwide lockdown that is expected in the new financial 
year will add to the challenges as we anticipate loss of 
employment and reduced salaries of tenants and this will 
also impact heavily on the already strained finances of 
the company.



53RIsKs anD oPPoRTUnITIes 
In oUR oPeRaTInG 
enVIRonMenT

The Group is exposed to a number of risks that are 
directly linked with the business activities or which result 
from external forces. A risk is understood as the chance 
that events, developments or actions will prevent the 
Group from achieving its targets. At the same time it is 
important for us to identify opportunities so that they 
can be utilised in the cause of our business activities, 
thus safeguarding and enhancing our competiveness. 
An opportunity is understood as a positive outcome that 
may bring additional value allowing improvement.

Given the impact of rental boycotts and COVID -19 pan-
demic on our business our opportunities are as follows:

our opportunities
Expansion into other Provinces – we have an opportuni-
ty for us to start expansion in other Provinces.

our Key Risks and 
Mitigating actions
We are conscious of the challenging environment 
being faced by the social housing sector which has 
been marred by rental boycotts the whole country. 
Consequently we are beginning to consider branching 
out and introduce other types of accommodation.

our opportunities
Introducing other products – The ongoing opportunity 
we have is for us to introduce new products and extend 
our client base and diversify same. For example FLIPS, 
student accommodation, buying and selling of property 
so as to improve returns and growth.

our Key Risks and 
Mitigating actions
The risk around introduction of new products is failure 
to realise the expected returns. Our response to this 
risk is for us to conduct a proper due challenge, capital 
appraisals and risk assessment before introducing a 
new product.

our 
opportunities
Breathing new life into our sub-
sidiary Limelight and utilise same as another delivery 
agent in terms of the Social Housing Act. Conducting 
profit making business through this subsidiary which 
business cannot be conducted through EHC as a 
non-profit company.

our Key Risk and 
Mitigating actions
Pressure on revenue to breathe life into Limelight. We are 
responding to this risk by earmarking Limelight to start 
with small projects and business ventures.
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ManaGInG RIsK 
sTRaTeGIcallY

In this unprecedented environment of rental boycotts 
and COVID – 19 pandemic, the Group’s focus on the key 
risks was concentrated on liquidity, business operational, 
regulatory and compliance, litigation risk, health and 
safety of staff. The outcome of the assessment is evident 
in our top risks as outlined below. The top risks are identi-
fied and managed to ensure that the Group remains 
resilient and operational.

business Risk
This risk has been re-evaluated to be our key strategic 
threat, following rental boycotts. This has adversely af-
fected EHC financial position and impacted on our ability 
to declare a surplus. Notwithstanding this, EHC remains 
operational and the management with the guidance and 
oversight of the board is managing this risk actively.

The COVID-19 pandemic contributed to the further dete-
rioration of revenue generation, this is mainly attributed 
to the introduction of lockdowns which lead to some of 
our tenant’s income being affected, and in turn, failing to 
pay rent.

Management response

 ■ Cost cutting
 ■ Discount offering to tenants (both current and 

ex-tenants) to increase revenue
 ■ Turnaround strategy in place

People and operational Risk
Due to the unprecedented extent of the rental boycotts 
facing the organisation as well as the adverse economic 
environment our operational risk profile is high.

People risk was also re-evaluated and prioritised across 
the organisation due to various challenges and uncer-
tainty created by the COVID-19 pandemic.

Management response

 ■ We will continue to work towards resolving the issues 
which have led or contributed to rental boycotts.

 ■ We remain committed to the safety, health and 
wellbeing of our staff and stakeholders. As a Group, 
we have taken significant measures to minimise the 
spread of COVID-19 to and by our staff and tenants.

liquidity Risk
Given the decrease in our collection rate from 73% 
to 35%, monoting liquidity remains a priority for the 
Group. As a result of the COVID – 19 pandemic we have 
observed that some of the paying tenants have started 
defaulting in their rental payments as they have not 
been able to earn their full salary.

Management response

 ■ Given the current situation a decision was made for 
the Finance and Investment Committee to track the 
finances of the organisation on a monthly basis.

 ■ We have embarked on a cost cutting exer-
cise with salary increments suspended as 
well as board sittings fees increment.

Regulatory, accounting 
and compliance Risk
We strive to comply and meet most of the required 
reporting requirements by the regulators. Aligning our-
selves with the required benchmarks is our top priority 
such as vacancy rate/collection rate /tax administration 
and on top of our mind is also our ability to prepare our 
AFS on time.

Managing response

 ■ Overcoming the current rental boycotts will be one 
of the main subjects at our next strategic planning 
session as well as mending the relationship with 
our tenants.

 ■ We intend on introducing half year reporting which 
will make it easy for us to prepare our AFS on time.

 ■ A payment arrangement has been entered 
into with SARS with the account to be 
settled by end of December 2020.
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strategic execution Risk
Strategic execution risk remained high given the unprecedented extent of rental boycotts, 
financial challenges facing the organisation which have led to failure to execute strategy.

Key factors like COVID – 19 pandemic have also impacted on our strategic plans. The Group is navigating through a 
tough environment and focusing on material matter of survival.

Management response

 ■ Our strategic focus for 2021 will be focused on liquidity, health and safety 
of employees, reputation and operations to prevent collapse and have 
an aggressive collections process and cost cutting discipline.

Reputational Risk
Reputational risk is elevated mainly on the back of accusations and media reports 
following the rental boycotts. Allegations of poor service and maintenance have 
also elevated reputational risk.

Management response

 ■ The Group intends on implementing an effective reputational risk management 
by applying reputational risk to critical matters.

 ■ We remain focused on organisational resilience in this ever dark times and 
expanding risk universe. Our focus and beyond being to encourage a culture of 
risk management among the management team.

 ■ Monitoring the risk universe heat map and 
Management responses

 ■ Oversee and manage the impact of COVID – 19 
with specific focus on events affecting 
staff and tenants. We will concen-
trate efforts on operational 
resilience and liquidity.
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DelIVeRInG ValUe 
cReaTIon
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58ReflecTIons 
fRoM oUR cHIef 
fInancIal offIceR

In an attempt to remain competitive and increase 
occupancy levels which were below standard in the 
previous year, rental increases of 5.5% were implemented 
on 01 September 2019 as opposed to previous years 
when rentals were increased on 01 March.

The delayed rental increase implementation and 15% 
vacancy rate across the company’s portfolio resulted in 
decreased rental income from R39.6 million in 2019 to 
R35.5 million in 2020. The company recorded income 
from electricity sales during the year which amounted to 
R3.7 million.

As it can be observed on the graph below, there was a 
further decline in occupancy levels in comparison to the 
2019 financial year. The decline in occupancy levels has a 
negative impact on property valuations which are based 
on discounted future cash flows.

Other income received during the year was more than 
R4 million, an increase of R3,1 million from the previous 
year. The increase in other income was mainly attribut-
able to income from insurance claims. These insurance 
claims related to vandalism and damage to property 
caused by riots taking place at Uthingo Park.

Finance income for the year was R118 904 (2019: 
R340 467). The reduction was caused by recalled 

investments that were previously generating interest in 
order to cover operational shortfalls.

Zanele Shongwe

Year on Year occupancy

82% 82% 82%85% 83% 83%
90% 94% 92%

80%84%85%

98% 95%94%97% 97% 97% 96% 96% 96%100% 96% 96%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

   2020 % Occupancy 94% 92% 90% 85% 83% 82% 85% 84% 82% 83% 82% 80%

   2019 % Occupancy 100% 97% 97% 98% 97% 96% 96% 96% 96% 96% 94% 95%
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expenditure
Total expenditure for the year amounted to R124.1 million 
(2019: R47.6 million), an increase of R76.6 million (61.6%) 
mainly caused by:

 ■ An increase of R9.5 million in provision for bad debts 
when compared to 2019;

 ■ Introduction of discounts allowed as a strategy to 
regularise tenant accounts resulted in additional 
expenditure of R815 079 in this regard;

 ■ R4 million increase in fair value reversals on invest-
ment property;

 ■ Impairment of leasehold property increased by R65,5 
million as a result of derecognition of Uthingo Park. 
The property has been derecognised as a result of 
an independent property valuation report which 
deemed that no future benefits can be derived 

from either its sale or 
continued use; and

 ■ Security costs in-
creased by more than R2.2 
million due to an increased need to prevent 
damage to property resulting from riots.

No salary increases were implemented during the 
period, as a result of this and resignations total employee 
costs were reduced by R549 807. Apart from the 
abovementioned expenses, most costs were reduced as 
compared to 2019.

Deficit for the Period vs 
Retained earnings
The company recorded a deficit of R80.7 million (2019: 
R6.8 million), primarily due to total expenses of R124.1 

2020 expenditure

 Amortisation, Depreciation and Impairments

 Property related expenses

 Salaries and Emoluments

 Legal Costs

 Other costs

12%

9%

72%

2%
5%

2019 expenditure

 Amortisation, Depreciation and Impairments

 Property related expenses

 Salaries and Emoluments

 Legal Costs

 Other costs

3%

36%

22%

23%

16%
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million which far exceeded revenue and other income 
which amounted to R43.4 million.

Retained income declined from R131 million in 2019 
to R50, 3 million in 2020 due to the deficit incurred 
during the year. Although the company is still 
solvent, EHC faces liquidity challenges caused by 
rental boycotts.

Review of financial Position
Total assets of the company were reduced by 56% 
mainly due to fair value adjustments and derecognition 
of properties.

Working capital

Cash and cash equivalents – increased 10% in the 
year to R2.3 million. Cash receipts from customers have 
decreased over the past two years with the ongoing 
rental boycotts.

2018 F/Y 2019 F/Y 2020 F/Y

 Actual results R12 890 176 R(6 790 979) R(80 754 110)

comprehensive Income/loss

R20 000 000

R-

-R20 000 000

-R40 000 000

-R100 000 000

-R80 000 000

-R60 000 000

cash balances

R8 000 000

R7 000 000

R6 000 000

R5 000 000

R4 000 000

R3 000 000

R2 000 000

R1 000 000

R-
Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20
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Trade and other payables – amounted to R11.4 
million, an increase of 25.5% from the previous year. The 
increase was as a result of the company’s inability to pay 
all creditors when due.

Trade and other receivables – the 55.3% increase 
from the prior year to R5.8 million was a net result of 
R24 million trade debtors less R18 million provision for 
doubtful debt.

liquidity analysis
The company’s liquidity ratio moved from 0.64:1 (2019) to 
0.72:1 in the 2020 financial year due to a higher increase 
in current assets when compared to the increase in 
current liabilities.

Review of cash flows
An average collection rate of 35.3% (2019: 73.4%) was 
realised during the year. Net cash used in operating 
activities R4.8 million (2019: R2.2 million) was mainly 
financed through disposal of investments for R5.4 million 
(2019: R6.2 million).

future Prospects
We have perfected the art of survival through difficult 
times over the past three years. We position the 2021 
financial year as the year to “innovate and take action”. 
Our innovation will be centred on ensuring customer 
satisfaction through intense engagements.

We believe that stability can be achieved through:

 ■ Retention of loyal tenants by implementing a 
well-crafted customer service strategy;

 ■ Improvement in stakeholder relations through 
frequent and meaningful engagements;

 ■ Full occupation of our properties; and
 ■ Taking advantage of technological develop-

ments in communicating with our tenants.

I would like to express my gratitude to the Board 
of Directors including our CEO for their consistent 
stewardship, my colleagues in management as well as 
all employees of EHC. Your commitment to the survival 
of the group is the most valuable asset for a company 
to have.

Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20

Monthly Tenant arrears

R-

R25 000 000

R20 000 000

R15 000 000

R10 000 000

R5 000 000
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ReMUneRaTIon  
oUTcoMes

The Board through the HR and Remuneration commit-
tee, strives to ensure that the Group’s overall remunera-
tion package is both competitive and sustainable.

The Human Resources and Remuneration committee 
is mandated by the Board to oversee and govern all 
aspects of remuneration. The committee operates 
according to approved terms of reference and is satisfied 
that all objectives of the terms of reference have been 
met without material deviation.

The Group endeavours to ensure remuneration reporting 
is comprehensive and transparent.

our Remuneration structure

our Remuneration structure 
in Detail
The Executive Committee is responsible for ensuring that 
total remuneration is distributed fairly. Through the HR 
Policy, the Human Resources and remuneration com-
mittee is committed to ensure that the remuneration of 
executive Management is fair and responsible in context 
of overall employee remuneration and performance of 
the company.

Staff members have a right to freedom of association 
on with labour unions. At 29 February 2020, 50% 
of our workforce were members of NEHAWU. A 
collective agreement is currently in place between 

EHC and NEHAWU as the only trade union currently 
representing employees.

In light of the current financial situation of the Group 
an annual salary increase of 6% for the 2020 financial 
year has been agreed upon but not implemented. It has 
further been agreed that no salary increment will take 
place for the financial year 2021.

During the reporting period, five General workers who 
had been employed on annual contracts for more than 
three years were appointed permanently. This has creat-
ed an additional commitment of R245 200 per annum. 
We had two resignations and one retirement during the 
year which reduced remuneration by R358 338 per year.

The total cost of remuneration moved from R17m in 2019 
to R15m in 2020 and distributed as follows:

Group 2019 2020

NED Remuneration R1,3m R650 245

Executive 
Directors

R2,6m R2,1m

Employees R13m R13m

Total R17m R16m

ensuring and Protecting 
Value in 2020
The HR and Remuneration Committee operated with the 
following objectives during the year:

 ■ Ensured oversight on fair remuneration outcomes
 ■ Reviewed remuneration reports presented 

by Management
 ■ Reviewed the overall remuneration budget 

and recommended for Board approval.

future focus for 2021 
and beyond

 ■ Intensified dialogue with all relevant stakeholders 
with the view of remaining competitive

Basic plus 13th 
cheque

Short-term 
focus

Performace 
bonus

Performance 
based

Medical aid 
company 
contributes 75%
■  Provident 

fund
■  Long-Service 

benefits

Other  
benefits
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 ■ Ensure that remuneration packages are in line with 
the remuneration policy

 ■ Continuous fulfilment of the requirements of the 
committee’s terms of reference

 ■ Monitor COVID – 19 pandemic interventions and 
compliance thereto.

 ■ Resuscitate talks of 
performance man-
agement with relevant 
stakeholders with the view 
to improve performance of the organisation.

executive Directors Remuneration
Director 2020 2019

MG Xaba R1 455 049 R1 766 344

ZA Shongwe R 725 086 R 842 274

Individual neD Remuneration

Company
BD Khoza 

Fees

RL 
Chauke 

Fees

MC Bosch 
Fees

JS Malan 
Fees

DT 
Mokoena 

Fees

SJ 
Sekgobela 

Fees

CB 
Dlamini 

Fees

SN 
Motloung 

Fees

EHC 109 609 98 265 129 771 140 270 68 504 103 826     650 245 

LPI 12 492 12 492         23 355   48 339 

LCD 18 281 18 281           39 537 76 099 

Total 774 683 



64



65

annUal fInancIal 
sTaTeMenTs

for the year ended 29 february 2020



66

General Information

Country of Incorporation and Domicile South Africa

Nature of Business and Principal Activities  Investment in and management of residential property in terms of a government mandate

Directors  DB Khoza (Chairperson) 
RL Chauke 
MG Xaba (CEO) 
ZA Shongwe (CFO) 
DT Mokoena (Deputy Chairperson) 
JS Malan 
HN Zitha (Resigned 3 July 2020) 
SJ Sekgobela (Resigned 20 April 2020) 
MC Bosch (Resigned 7 September 2020)

Business Address  7 Beatty Avenue 
Emalahleni 
1035

Bankers  Standard Bank , Nedbank

Independent Auditors  A2A Kopano Incorporated  
Chatered Accountants (S.A) 
Registered Auditor

Company Secretary R Tsokodayi

eMalaHlenI HoUsInG coMPanY nPc
(ReG. no. 2002/015812/08) 
annUal fInancIal sTaTeMenTs foR THe YeaR enDeD  
29 febRUaRY 2020



67

Index

The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to 
the shareholder: 

General Information 66

Independent Auditor’s Report 68

Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval 71

Directors’ Report 72

Statement of Financial Position 74

Statement of Comprehensive Income 75

Statement of Changes in Equity 76

Statement of Cash Flows 77

Accounting Policies 78

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 83

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited:

Detailed Income Statement 92



Independent auditor’s Report

To the Directors of Emalahleni Housing Company NPC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Emalahleni Housing Company NPC set out on pages 74 to 91, which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 29 February 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes 
in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Emalahleni Housing 
Company NPC as at 29 February 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act of 
South Africa.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the company in accordance with the sections 290 and 291 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ 
Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board 
for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November 2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other 
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities, as applicable, in accordance with the IRBA Codes and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to 
performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Codes are consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) respectively. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter–Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 15 to the financial statements which indicates that the company incurred a operating deficit of R67,257,139 
during the year ended 29 February 2020 . This condition, along with other matters as set forth in the Directors’ Report, indicate that a 
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors’ 
Report further describes why, under these circumstances, the financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis. 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report as required by 
the Companies Act of South Africa. The other information does not include the separate financial statements and our auditor’s 
reports thereon.
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Independent auditor’s Report

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Separate Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act of South 
Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of separate financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

 – Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 – Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

 – Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the directors.

 – Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 – Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 – We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report continued …
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 – We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

 – From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with our responsibilities in terms of sections 44(2) and 44(3) of the Auditing Profession Act, we report that we have 
identified a reportable irregularity in terms of the Auditing Profession Act. We have reported such matter to the Independent 
Regulatory Board for Auditors. The matters pertaining to the reportable irregularities have been described in the Directors’ report.

A2A Kopano Incorporated 6 January 2021

Per: ME Raubenheimer 
Partner 
Registered Auditor

5 Van Rensburg Street 
Nelspruit 
1200

Independent Auditor’s Report continued …

Independent auditor’s Report
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The directors are required by the South African Companies Act 71 of 2008 to maintain adequate accounting records and are 
responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. 
It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements satisfy the financial reporting standards as to form and content 
and present fairly the statement of financial position, results of operations and business of the company, and explain the transactions 
and financial position of the business of the company at the end of the financial year. The annual financial statements are based upon 
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied throughout the company and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the 
company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these 
responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The 
standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and 
adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the company and all 
employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the company’s business is conducted in a manner that in 
all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.

The focus of risk management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across 
the company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate 
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system of internal control 
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. 
However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable , and not absolute, assurance against material 
misstatement or loss. The going-concern basis has been adopted in preparing the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements have been audited by the independent auditing firm, A2A Kopano Incorporated, who have been 
given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all meetings of the board of directors and 
committees of the board. The directors believe that all representations made to the independent auditor during the audit were valid 
and appropriate. The external auditors’ report is presented on pages 2 to 4.

The annual financial statements as set out on pages 8 to 26 were approved by the board on 6 January 2021 and were signed on their 
behalf by:

DB Khoza (Chairperson) DT Mokoena (Deputy Chairperson)

MG Xaba (CEO)

Directors’ Responsibilities and approval
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their report for the year ended 29 February 2020.

1. Review of financial results and activities

 Main business and operations

  The principal activity of the company is investment in and management of residential property in terms of a government 
mandate and there were no major changes herein during the year.

  The operating results and statement of financial position of the company are fully set out in the attached financial statements 
and do not in our opinion require any further comment.

2. Going concern

  The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

  To this end, we draw attention to the fact that at 29 February 2020, the Statement of Comprehensive Income reflected a loss of R 
80 754 110 (2019: R 6 790 979). This was due to large bad debt write offs as the company was attempting to collect all rentals due. 
There was also a large devaluation in property values and resultant impairment of assets mainly caused by continuous rental 
boycotts taking place at Uthingo Park.

  The company continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements. The uncertainty as to the future 
impact of the recent Covid-19 outbreak has been considered as part of the company’s adoption of the going concern basis. 
Covid-19 has impacted the ability to collect rentals and also the value of investment property, resulting in liquidity concerns.

  As a result of the above circumstances, there is material uncertainty as to the liquidity of the company and the going concern.

  In order to ensure that operations continue, a turnaround strategy was developed. Plans have been put in place to improve 
the company’s relationship with tenants by offering discounts on arrears and improved communications. Improvement 
in occupancy levels of our buildings are expected to improve and in turn liquidity of the company. A social facilitator was 
appointed by the regulator to try and ascertain the issues at hand and mediate thereafter.

3. Events after reporting date

  Since 31 December 2019, the spread of Covid-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the world. President Cyril 
Ramaphosa’s level 5 lockdown announcement on 15 March 2020 forced many businesses to cease or limit operations for long 
or infinite periods. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and 
closure of non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses, resulting in an economic slowdown.

  The company’s business activities continued due to the nature of the business although not an essential service. The company’s 
management has determined that these events are non-adjusting events. Accordingly, no disclosure or adjustment has been 
made to these financial statements.

  At this stage ,the effect of Covid-19 on the business results is limited. We will continue to follow regulations set by the 
government and in parallel will do our utmost to continue our operations in the best and safest way possible without 
jeopardising the health of our employees and tenants.

  The contingent liability regarding Uthingo Park as reported on note 19 was settled out of court on 14 December 2020. No future 
costs regarding the matter are expeced to be incurred from the date of settlement.
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4. Reportable irregularities

  The financial statements for the year ended 29 February 2020 were not approved within 3 months and submitted to SHRA by 31 
May 2020.

 The company deducted PAYE from staff and have not paid it to the South African Revenue Services due to liquidity issues.

5. Directors’ interest in contracts

 To our knowledge none of the directors had any interest in contracts entered into during the year under review.

6. Borrowing limitations

  In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the company, the directors may exercise all the powers of the company to 
borrow money, as they consider appropriate.

7. Directors

  The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows: DB Khoza (Chairperson)

 RL Chauke
 MG Xaba (CEO)
 ZA Shongwe (CFO)
 DT Mokoena (Deputy Chairperson)
 JS Malan
 HN Zitha (Resigned 3 July 2020)
 SJ Sekgobela (Resigned 20 April 2020)
 MC Bosch (Resigned 7 September 2020)

8. Secretary

 The company secretary is R Tsokodayi.

9. Independent Auditors

  A2A Kopano Incorporated were the independent auditors for the year under review. The appointed audit firm for 2021 will be 
announced at the Annual General Meeting.

10. Separate financial statements

  Emalahleni Housing Company NPC is a 100% holding company of Limelight Property Investments (Proprietary) Limited.

  The directors are of the opinion that consolidated financial statements will not add value or more information to information 
contained in the separate financial statements and hence do not present consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Report
Directors’ Report continued …
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statement of financial Position
Figures in R Note(s) 2020 2019

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Investment property 2 42,010,001 50,200,001

Property, plant and equipment 3 11,516,516 78,631,521

Intangible assets 4 26,188 94,941

Other financial assets 6 100 5,436,533

53,552,805 134,362,996

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 7 5,867,671 3,778,504

Cash and cash equivalents 8 2,358,253 2,143,764

8,225,924 5,922,268

Total Assets 61,778,729 140,285,264

Equity and Liabilities

 Equity

Retained earnings 50,314,526 131,068,636

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 11 11,464,203 9,136,696

Finance lease liabilities 9 – 79,932

11,464,203 9,216,628

Total Equity and Liabilities 61,778,729 140,285,264
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statement of comprehensive Income
Figures in R Note(s) 2020 2019

Revenue 12 39,241,646 39,605,910

Other income 13 4,058,714 886,047

Operating costs (115,559,914) (43,217,635)

Other gains and losses 14 (8,299,948) (4,363,726)

Operating deficit 15 (80,559,502) (7,089,404)

Finance income 16 118,904 340,467

Finance costs 17 (313,512) (42,042)

Deficit for the year (80,754,110) (6,790,979)

Retained income at 1 March 2019 131,068,636 137,859,615

Deficit for the year (80,754,110) (6,790,979)

Retained income at 29 February 2020 50,314,526 131,068,636
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statement of changes in equity

Figures in R
Retained
earnings

Total

Balance at 1 March 2018 137,859,615 137,859,615

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Deficit for the year (6,790,979) (6,790,979)

Total comprehensive loss for the year (6,790,979) (6,790,979)

Balance at 28 February 2019 131,068,636 131,068,636

Balance at 1 March 2019 131,068,636 131,068,636

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Deficit for the year (80,754,110) (80,754,110)

Total comprehensive loss for the year (80,754,110) (80,754,110)

Balance at 29 February 2020 50,314,526 50,314,526
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statement of cash flows
Figures in R Note(s) 2020 2019

Cash flows used in operating activities

Deficit for the year (80,754,110) (6,790,979)

Adjustments for:

Finance costs 17 313,512 42,042

Amortisation of intangible assets 4 71,566 76,506

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3 1,578,718 1,100,619

Impairment of property, plant and equipment 3 65,678,421 170,470

Investment income 16 (118,904) (340,467)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment – 285,619

Change in fair value of investment property 2 8,301,159 4,363,726

Change in value of Land and buildings – (102,480)

Operating cash flow before working capital changes (4,929,638) (1,194,944)

Working capital changes

Increase in trade and other receivables (2,089,167) (1,248,489)

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 2,327,507 (145,893)

Net cash flows used in operations (4,691,298) (2,589,326)

Investment income 16 118,904 340,467

Finance costs 17 (313,512) (42,042)

Net cash flows used in operating activities (4,885,906) (2,290,901)

Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities

Investment property acquired 2 (111,159) (517,311)

Property, plant and equipment acquired 3 (167,984) (10,304,921)

Intangible assets acquired 4 (2,813) (7,629)

Investment disposed 6 5,436,533 6,201,951

Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and equipment 25,850 613,772

Proceeds on disposals of investment property – 228,897

Proceeds on disposals of intangible assets 4 – 1,985

Investment in Limelight Property Investments (Pty) Ltd 5 (100) –

Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities 5,180,327 (3,783,256)

Cash flows used in financing activities

Instalment sale payments 9 (79,932) (132,985)

Net cash flows used in financing activities (79,932) (132,985)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 214,489 (6,207,142)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,143,764 8,350,906

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 8 2,358,253 2,143,764
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accounting Policies

1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

  The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standard for Small and Medium -sized Entities, and the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The financial statements have been prepared 
on the historical cost basis, except for the measurement of investment properties, leasehold improvements and certain 
financial instruments at fair value, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in 
South African Rands.

 The accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

 1.1 Government grants

   Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value in profit or loss where there is a reasonable assurance 
that the grant will be received and the company has complied with all attached conditions. Grants received where the 
company has yet to comply with all attached conditions are recognised as a liability (and included in deferred income) and 
released to income when all attached conditions have been complied with. Government grants received are included in 
‘other income’ in profit or loss.

   Government grants related to assets are recognised in the statement of financial position by deducting the grant in arriving 
at the carrying amount of the asset.

 1.2 Tax

  Tax expenses

   The company is exempt from normal income taxation in terms of Section 10 of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act No.58 of 1962).

 1.3 Investment property

   Investment property is land and buildings held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.

   Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in 
profit or loss. If the fair value of investment property cannot be measured reliably without undue cost or effort, then it is 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment.

   The cost of investment property comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs incurred to bring the asset 
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

   Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an investment property and costs incurred subsequently to 
add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of investment 
property, the carrying amount of the replaced item is derecognised.

   The fair value is determined annually by an external valuator derived from current market prices of comparable real 
estate.

 1.4 Property, plant and equipment

   Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the company holds for its own use or for rental to others and 
which are expected to be used for more than one period.

  Plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

   Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item 
of plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
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   Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services,additions to or replacements of parts of property,plant and 
equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the 
company and the cost can be measured reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the period in 
which they are incurred.

   Subsequent to initial recognition, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.

   Land and buildings are stated at revalued amounts. The revalued amount is the fair value at the date of revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

   Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which 
would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

   When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the gross carrying amount is adjusted consistently with the 
carrying amount. The accumulated depreciation at that date is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying 
amount and the net revalued carrying amount.

   Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive income to the 
extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. Any remaining decrease in excess of 
such credit is recognised in profit or loss in the current year.

   The revaluation surplus related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained 
income when the asset is derecognised.

   Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is 
charged to write off the asset’s carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method 
that best reflects the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the company.

   The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Land Straight line Indefinite

Buildings Straight line Indefinite

Machinery and equipment Straight line 6 years

Motor vehicles Straight line 3 years

Furniture and fittings Straight line 6 years

Office equipment Straight line 6 years

Computer equipment Straight line 3 years

   When indicators are present that the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment have 
changed since the most recent annual reporting date, they are reassessed. Any changes are accounted for prospectively as 
a change in accounting estimate.

   Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. 
When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss, equal to the excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount, is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss for assets which are not revalued. In the case of revalued assets, the impairment 
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity against any 
existing credit relating to the same asset. Any remaining impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued …
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   An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and 
equipment, determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, 
is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

 1.5 Intangible assets

   Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

   Research and development costs are recognised as an expense in the period incurred.

   Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis as follows:

Item Useful life

Computer software 3 years

   In cases where management is unable to make a reliable estimate of the useful life of an intangible asset, its best estimate 
is applied, limited to 10 years.

   The residual value, amortisation period and amortisation method for intangible assets are reassessed when there is an 
indication that there is a change from the previous estimate.

 1.6 Impairment of assets

   The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment or 
intangible assets or goodwill may be impaired

   If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and 
compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its 
estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

   If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of assets) is increased to the 
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss.

 1.7 Leases

   A lease is classified as a finance leases if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the 
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

  1.7.1 Operating leases–lessor

    Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless:

 – another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit from the leased asset, even if the 
receipt of payments is not on that basis, or

 – the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation (based on published indexes or 
statistics) to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

  1.7.2 Operating leases–lessee

    Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless:

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued …
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 – another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit from the leased asset, even if the 
payments are not on that basis, or

 – the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation (based on published indexes or 
statistics) to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

   Any contigent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

 1.8 Financial instruments

  1.8.1 Financial instruments at amortised cost

    These include loans and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria in section 11.8(b) of the 
standard, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which 
are classified as current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be received or 
paid, unless the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction.

    At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether 
there is any objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated 
and compared to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or 
loss.

  1.8.2 Trade and other receivables

    Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade 
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to the original terms of the receivables.

  1.8.3 Trade payables

    Trade payables are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method.

  1.8.4 Cash and cash equivalents

    Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments 
with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts that are readily convertible to a known amount 
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are subsequently recorded in fair value.

 1.9 Employee benefits

  1.9.1 Short-term employee benefits

    The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as 
paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the 
period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

 1.10 Provisions and contingencies

   Provisions are recognised when the company has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event; it is 
probable that the company will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement; and the amount of the obligation 
can be estimated reliably.

   Provisions are measured at the present value of the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The 
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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   Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

 1.11 Borrowing costs

  Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

 1.12 Revenue

   Revenue is recognised to the extent that the company has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
goods to the buyer, or has rendered services under an agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably and it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable , excluding sales taxes and discounts.

  Interest is recognised in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

  Revenue from rentals is recognised on the accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.
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notes to the annual financial statements
Figures in R 2020 2019

2. Investment property

 Opening balances 50,200,001 54,275,313

 Subsequent expenditure capitalised 111,159 517,311

 Change in fair value (8,301,159) (4,363,726)

 Disposals – (228,897)

 Closing balance 42,010,001 50,200,001

 Panorama Heights

 1 Maria Street, Highveld Park

 – Opening balance 9,700,000 9,700,000

 – Additions – 9,091

 – Fair value adjustment (2,700,000) (9,091)

7,000,000 9,700,000

 Lesedi Court

 Erf 6991 & 6996, Klarinet Ext 6

 – Opening balance 34,600,000 37,100,000

 – Additions – 183,714

 – Fair value adjustment (5,400,000) (2,683,714)

29,200,000 34,600,000

 Weaver’s Nest

 Cnr Beatty Avenue & Allenby street , Emalahleni

 – Opening balance 2,900,000 3,182,000

 – Additions – –

 – Fair value adjustment (400,000) (282,000)

2,500,000 2,900,000

 Other

 3 and 21 Beatty Avenue, Eric Liberty,Emalahleni

 – Opening balance 3,000,001 4,293,314

 – Subsequent expenditure capitalised 111,159 95,607

 – Fair value adjustment 198,841 (1,388,920)

3,310,001 3,000,001

 Total value 42,010,001 50,200,001

 The investment property consists of residential property located in eMalahleni.

 Details of valuation

  The effective date of the revaluation was Saturday, 29 February 2020. Revaluations were performed by an independent valuer, 
Mr Dave Furness, Professional Associate valuer of Dave Furness Properties. Dave Furness is not connected to the company and 
has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property at fair value being valued.

  The valuation was based on discounted future cash flows from rentals received. High vacancy rates and reduced rental 
collections have resulted in a total imparment of R8 301 159.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

Figures in R

2020 2019

Cost or 
revaluation

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying  
value

Cost or 
revaluation

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying  
value

Owned assets

Land and buildings (offices) 5,600,000 – 5,600,000 6,320,000 – 6,320,000

Motor vehicles 1,663,606 (1,663,606) – 1,663,606 (1,574,930) 88,676

Furniture and fittings 806,432 (783,407) 23,025 835,896 (688,769) 147,127

Leasehold property – – – 64,958,421 – 64,958,421

Office equipment 121,228 (68,259) 52,969 124,622 (50,524) 74,098

Computer equipment 353,961 (245,033) 108,928 301,934 (209,398) 92,536

Machinery and Equipment 7,635,360 (1,903,766) 5,731,594 7,581,615 (630,952) 6,950,663

16,180,587 (4,664,071) 11,516,516 81,786,094 (3,154,573) 78,631,521

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment can be reconciled as follows:

Figures in R
Carrying value 

at beginning 
of year

Additions
Disposals / 

Revaluations
Depreciation 

and impairment

2020 Carrying 
value at end 

of year

Owned assets

Land and buildings (offices) 6,320,000 – – (720,000) 5,600,000

Motor vehicles 88,676 – – (88,676) –

Furniture and fittings 147,127 23,123 (24,608) (122,617) 23,025

Leasehold property 64,958,421 – – (64,958,421) –

Office equipment 74,098 – (1,242) (19,887) 52,969

Computer equipment 92,536 91,120 – (74,728) 108,928

Machinery and Equipment 6,950,663 53,741 – (1,272,810) 5,731,594

78,631,521 167,984 (25,850) (67,257,139) 11,516,516

notes to the annual financial statements
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Figures in R
Carrying value 

at beginning 
of year

Additions
Disposals / 

Revaluations
Depreciation 

and impairment

2019 Carrying 
value at end 

of year

Owned assets

Land and buildings (offices) 6,592,950 – (102,480) (170,470) 6,320,000

Motor vehicles 206,141 – 3,703 (121,168) 88,676

Furniture and fittings 352,368 – (39,533) (165,708) 147,127

Leasehold property 57,099,316 8,372,380 (513,275) – 64,958,421

Office equipment 65,914 57,508 (23,961) (25,363) 74,098

Computer equipment 105,121 83,840 (18,841) (77,584) 92,536

Machinery and Equipment 6,075,270 1,791,193 (205,004) (710,796) 6,950,663

70,497,080 10,304,921 (899,391) (1,271,089) 78,631,521

Revaluations

The company’s land and buildings and leasehold property are stated at revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of 
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed 
every 3 years and in intervening years if the carrying amount of the land and buildings differs materially from their fair value.

4. Intangible assets

Figures in R

2020 2019

Cost
Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value

Cost
Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value

Computer software 414,304 (388,116) 26,188 416,490 (321,549) 94,941

The carrying amounts of intangible assets can be reconciled as follows:

Figures in R
Carrying value 

at beginning 
of year

Fair value gains 
/ Additions

Amortisation Disposals
2020 Carrying 

value at end 
of year

Computer software 94,941 2,813 (71,566) – 26,188

Figures in R
Carrying value 

at beginning 
of year

Fair value gains 
/ Additions

Amortisation Disposals
2019 Carrying 
value at end 

of year

Computer software 165,803 7,629 (76,506) (1,985) 94,941

notes to the annual financial statements
Property, plant and equipment continued …
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notes to the annual financial statements
Figures in R 2020 2019

5. Investment in subsidiary

 Cost of investment in Limelight Property Investments (Pty) Ltd. 100 –

6. Other financial assets

 At fair value

 Liberty Investments – 5,436,533

 Non-current assets

 At fair value – 5,436,533

  The fair value of listed or quoted investments are based on the quoted market price at reporting period date. All the company’s 
investments were recalled during the year.

7. Trade and other receivables

 Trade debtors 22,993,042 6,891,179

 Deposits paid 868,000 868,000

 Likhaya Community Development Npc 34,217 –

 Pre-payments 160,819 100,790

24,056,078 7,859,969

 Provision for doubtful debt (18,188,407) (4,081,465)

5,867,671 3,778,504

8. Cash and cash equivalents

 Favourable cash balances

 Cash on hand 748 2,230

 Bank balances 2,357,505 2,141,534

2,358,253 2,143,764

9. Finance lease liabilities

 No later than one year – 79,932

 In second to fifth year inclusive – –

 Less: future finance charges – –

 Present value of minimum lease payments – 79,932

 Current liabilities – 79,932

 Non-current liabilities – –

– 79,932

The finance lease relates to a motor vehicle lease agreement which was entered into in 2013. The lease term expired during the period 
under review and ownership of the asset has been transferred to the company.
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notes to the annual financial statements
Figures in R 2020 2019

10. Employee costs

 Basic 8,901,535 8,945,661

 Medical aid–company contributions 1,547,312 2,167,396

 UIF 197,732 190,743

 Workman’s compensation – 45,805

 Other payroll levies – 376,244

 Staff rent (recovered)/paid 1,921 (1,062)

 Staff bonuses – 451,385

 Other short term costs 1,950,972 973,104

12,599,472 13,149,276

11. Trade and other payables

 Trade creditors 4,986,305 2,490,032

 Likhaya Community Development Npc – 276,495

 Limelight Property Investments 379,393 –

 Accruals 1,402,806 1,154,056

 Deposits received 4,695,699 5,216,113

11,464,203 9,136,696

12. Revenue

 An analysis of revenue is as follows:

 Rental income 35,521,515 39,605,910

 Electricity sales 3,720,131 –

39,241,646 39,605,910

13. Other Income

 Admin / management fees received 272,684 140,986

 Bad debts recovered 468,756 164,941

 Insurance claims 3,163,782 13,356

 Other income 144,128 566,764

 Seta Grant 9,364 –

4,058,714 886,047

14. Other gains and losses

 Fair value loss on devaluation of investment property (8,299,948) (4,363,726)
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notes to the annual financial statements
Figures in R 2020 2019

15. Operating deficit

 Operating deficit is arrived at after taking into account the following items:

 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment – 285,619

 Depreciation and impairments

 Land and buildings (offices) 720,000 170,470

 Motor vehicles 88,676 121,168

 Furniture and fittings 122,617 165,708

 Leasehold property impairment 64,958,421 –

 Office equipment 19,887 25,363

 IT equipment 74,728 77,584

 Machinery and Equipment 1,272,810 710,796

67,257,139 1,271,089

 Amortisation and impairment

 Intangible assets

 Computer software 71,566 76,506

 Directors’ emoluments 2,830,380 3,914,204

 Operating lease charges

 Premises 63,480 89,200

 Equipment 95,335 100,974

158,815 190,174

16. Investment revenue

 Interest revenue

 Interest received from cash investments 118,904 340,467

17. Finance costs

 Interest paid on tenant deposit refunds 313,512 42,042

313,512 42,042
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notes to the annual financial statements
Figures in R 2020 2019

18. Directors’ remuneration

 Executive

Figures in R Emoluments Other benefits* Total

 2020

 MG Xaba (CEO) 1,437,049 18,000 1,455,049

 ZA Shongwe (CFO) 707,086 18,000 725,086

2,144,135 36,000 2,180,135

 2019

 MG Xaba (CEO) 1,748,344 18,000 1,766,344

 ZA Shongwe (CFO) 824,274 18,000 842,274

2,572,618 36,000 2,608, 618

 * Other benefits comprise housing allowance.

 Non-executive

Figures in R Directors’ fees Total

 2020

 DB Khoza (Chairperson) 109,609 109,609

 RL Chauke 98,265 98,265

 SJ Sekgobela 103,826 103,826

 DT Mokoena (Deputy Chairperson) 68,504 68,504

 MC Bosch 129,771 129,771

 JS Malan 140,270 140,270

650,245 650,245

 2019

 DB Khoza (Chairperson) 214,098 214,098

 RL Chauke 380,247 380,247

 CB Dlamini 178,093 178,093

 SN Motloung 161,068 161,068

 SJ Sekgobela 219,677 219,677

 DT Mokoena (Deputy Chairperson) 105,890 105,890

 MC Bosch 18,738 18,738

 JS Malan 27,775 27,775

1,305,586 1,305,586
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19. Contingent liabilities

 Possible liability to Emalahleni Local Municipality

  The Emalahleni Local Municipality (ELM) has billed Emalahleni Housing Company (EHC) an amount of R15 331 357 for unpaid 
electricity services.

  EHC is disputing this amount on the basis that tenants at Uthingo Park residential complex are using prepaid meters. Each meter 
is registered and compatible with the municipality’s prepaid meter system. EHC has been consistent in raising concerns to ELM 
regarding the disputed amount and requested a reconciliation to be performed reconciling the amount of bulk consumption 
with the pre-paid purchases. To date this has not materialised.

  In accordance with the MOU reached between ELM and EHC, EHC has taken over the responsibility of the supply of electricity 
to the tenants of Uthingo Park residential complex. The sale of electricity to consumers is being done by means of pre-paid 
electricity vending process through Limelight Property Investments, a subsidiary of EHC. To this end, EHC had to install new 
kiosk boxes that are secured and cannot be tempered with. The kiosk boxes were installed by EHC at a cost of R7 554 674, and is 
presented in the notes under Property, plant and equipment.

  Upon take over, EHC receives accurate readings from Conlog. EHC and ELM are discussing and comparing sales from Conlog to 
correct billing by ELM

  Litigation regarding Uthingo Park

  In terms of the Social Housing Policies and the presidential Job Summit Lead Project („PJSLP”), the Emalahleni Housing Company 
(EHC) was incorporated to take ownership, administrate and manage the units at Uthingo Park. Before its incorporation, however, 
the project to build 5 000 houses was approved by National Government, then Department of Housing, and Anchorprops 31 
(Pty) Ltd t/a Witbank Housing Corporation (WHC) was appointed as a developer.

  The Emalahleni Local Municipality (ELM), in turn, entered into an agreement with WHC called the „Land Availability Agreement” 
LAA in terms of which ELM’s land was made available to WHC for the latter to build the 5 000 units envisaged by PJSLP. However, 
WHC built 1131 units of which 211 were incomplete. ELM then sought to cancel the LAA by giving WHC notice of cancellation.

  WHC launched an application in the North Gauteng High Court in Pretoria under case number 76256/2009, in which it sought a 
declaratory order holding ELM bound to the terms of the LAA, directing ELM to sign and deliver to it special powers of attorney 
to enable WHC to take transfer and sell 1 250 units in Uthingo Park and directing ELM to sign, on demand, further powers of 
attorney for the transfer of the rest of the units to WHC. ELM is opposing the application.

  On advice of senior council, EHC has withdrawn its counter application in case no 76256/2009 and tendered legal fees in that 
matter. There are a number of matters in court which include an interim interdict which was set down to be heard on the 16th 
April 2019 to prevent the transfer of Uthingo Park property, pending the hearing of the review applications as well as contempt 
of court proceedings against Messrs Sgudla and Mamba. This interdict was granted by the court and Anchorprops and ELM were 
ordered to pay the costs of EHC.

 The possible exposure to legal costs is estimated at R5 million.
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notes to the annual financial statements
Figures in R 2020 2019

20. Related parties

 Related parties Relationship

 Limelight Property Investments (Pty) Ltd Group entities

 Likhaya Community Development NPC Significant control

  Related party balances and transactions with entities with control, joint control or significant influence over the 
company

 Related party balances and transactions

 Amounts included in Trade receivables (Payables) regarding related parties

 Limelight Property Investments (Pty) Ltd 535,795 5,816

 Likhaya Community Development NPC 34,215 173,174

Name Relationship Transactions

Amounts owed (to) / by the 
related party at year-end

2020 2019

 Limelight Property Investments (Pty) Ltd Subsidiary Inter company loans 535,795 5,816

 Likhaya Community Development NPC Group entity Inter company loans 34,215 173,174

 The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

 Salaries 10,648,500 12,176,172

 Other short-term benefits 1,950,972 973,104

 Directors remuneration 2,830,380 3,914,204

21. Going concern

  The company continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. The uncertainty as to the future 
impact on the company of the recent Covid-19 outbreak has been considered as part of the company adoption of the going 
concern basis. Thus far the impact due to Covid-19 has caused further liquidity issues.

22. Subsequent events

  Since 31 December 2019, the spread of Covid-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the world.President Cyril 
Ramaphosa’s level 5 lockdown announcement on 15 March 2020 forced many businesses to cease or limit operations for long 
or infinite periods. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and 
closure of non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses, resulting in an economic slowdown. The 
company’s business activities continued due to the nature of the business although not an essential service.

23. Approval of annual financial statements

 These financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 6 January 2021.
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Detailed Income statement
Figures in R Notes 2020 2019

Revenue

Rental received 35,521,515 39,605,910

Electricity sales 3,720,131 –

39,241,646 39,605,910

Other Income

Administration fees received 272,684 140,986

Bad debts recovered 468,756 164,941

Fair value gain 1,211 –

Investment income 118,904 340,467

Insurance claims 3,163,782 13,356

Other income 144,128 566,764

Deposits forfeited 9,364 –

13 4,178,829 1,226,514

43,420,475 40,832,424

Expenditure

Auditors remuneration 575,909 325,918

Advertising 26,040 328,416

Amortisation–Intangible assets 71,566 76,506

Provision for bad debts 14,088,700 4,527,893

Bank charges 367,852 453,150

Commission paid – 500,000

Computer expenses 276,552 274,071

Consulting fees 655,927 1,123,691

Consumables 127,241 173,649

Depreciation–Tangible assets 3 1,578,718 1,100,619

Discount allowed 815,079 –

Electricity and water 175,621 1,156,467

Emoluments–Directors 18 2,830,380 3,914,204

Entertainment 153,454 590,100

Fair value reversals 2 8,301,159 4,363,726

Finance costs 313,512 42,042

Impairment of leasehold improvements 3 65,678,421 170,470

Insurance 628,800 505,252
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Detailed Income statement

Figures in R Notes 2020 2019

Lease rental on operating lease 158,815 190,174

Legal expense 1,961,033 1,655,031

Loss on sale of fixed assets – 285,619

Motor vehicle expense 129,967 143,378

AGM Expenses 102,234 116,555

Assets < R2 000 34,329 17,227

CSI Expense – 298,932

Petrol and oil 20,628 25,409

Postage 798 558

Printing and stationery 13,274 64,666

Protective clothing 32,329 47,410

Repairs and maintenance 2,276,582 3,968,482

Salaries 10 12,599,472 13,149,279

Secretarial fees 5,300 3,000

Security 9,135,392 6,898,774

Subscriptions 167,333 150,788

Telephone and fax 615,453 537,030

Training 14,904 224,470

Travel–local 241,811 220,447

124,174,585 47,623,403

Loss for the year (80,754,110) (6,790,979)

Detailed Income Statement continued …
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General Information

Country of Incorporation and Domicile South Africa
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To the Shareholders of Limelight Property Investments (Pty) Ltd 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Limelight Property Investments (Pty) Ltd set out on pages 103 to 110, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 29 February 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement 
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Limelight Property Investments 
(Pty) Ltd as at 29 February 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the South African Companies 
Act 71 of 2008.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the company in accordance with the sections 290 and 291 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ 
Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board 
for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November 2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other 
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities, as applicable, in accordance with the IRBA Codes and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to 
performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Codes are consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) respectively. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter – Going Concern

We draw attention to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the financial statements which indicates that the company incurred 
a net loss of R233,604 during the year ended 29 February 2020, and as of that date, the company’s total liabilities exceeded its total 
assets by R237,018. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in the Directors’ Report, indicate that a material uncertainty 
exists that may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors’ Report further 
describes why, under these circumstances, the financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis. Our opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter.

Independent auditor’s Report
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Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report as required by the 
Companies Act of South Africa. The other information does not include the separate financial statements and our auditor’s reports 
thereon.

Our opinion on the separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the South African Companies Act 71 of 
2008, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

 – Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 – Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

 – Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the directors.

Independent auditor’s Report
Independent Auditor’s Report continued …
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued …

Independent auditor’s Report

 – Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 – Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 – We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

 – Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 – Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

 – Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the directors.

 – Conclude on the appropriateness of the company’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
organisation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the organisation to cease to continue as a going concern.

 – Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 – Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
group to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

 – We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued …

Independent auditor’s Report

 – From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with our responsibilities in terms of sections 44(2) and 44(3) of the Auditing Profession Act, we report that we have 
identified a reportable irregularity in terms of the Auditing Profession Act. We have reported such matter to the Independent 
Regulatory Board for Auditors. The matters pertaining to the reportable irregularities have been described in the Directors’ report.

A2A Kopano Incorporated 30 December 2020

Per: ME Raubenheimer 
Director 
Registered Auditor 

Proforum Building 
5 Van Rensburg Street 
Nelspruit 
1201
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The directors are required by the South African Companies Act 71 of 2008 to maintain adequate accounting records and are 
responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. 
It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements satisfy the financial reporting standards as to form and content 
and present fairly the statement of financial position, results of operations and business of the company, and explain the transactions 
and financial position of the business of the company at the end of the financial year. The annual financial statements are based upon 
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied throughout the company and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the 
company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these 
responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The 
standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and 
adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the company and all 
employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the company’s business is conducted in a manner that in 
all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.

The focus of risk management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across 
the company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate 
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system of internal control 
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. 
However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable , and not absolute, assurance against material 
misstatement or loss. The going-concern basis has been adopted in preparing the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements as set out on pages 9 to 16 were approved by the board on 30 December 2020 and were signed on 
their behalf by:

CB Dlamini (Chairperson) MG Xaba

DB Khoza

Directors’ Responsibilities and approval
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The directors present their report for the year ended 29 February 2020.

1. Review of activities

 Main business and operations

  The principal activity of the company is investment in and management of property including submetering services and there 
were no major changes herein during the year.

  The operating results and statement of financial position of the company are fully set out in the attached financial statements 
and do not in our opinion require any further comment.

2. Going concern

  The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

  The company continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements. The uncertainty as to the future 
impact of the recent Covid-19 outbreak has been considered as part of the company’s adoption of the going concern basis. 
Covid-19 has impacted the ability to canvas funds, resulting in liquidity concerns.

  The directors draw attention to the statement of changes in equity in the annual financial statements which indicates that 
the company incurred a net loss of R233,504 during the year ended 29 February 2020 and, as at that date, the company’s 
total liabilities exceeded its total assets by R237,018. These conditions with other matters, indicate the existence of a material 
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These conditions are as a 
result of the company’s inability to generate revenue during the reporting period

  As a result of the above circumstances, there is material uncertainty as to the liquidity of the company and the going concern. A 
management agreement between Limelight Property Investments and Emalahleni Housing Company Npc for the submetering 
project is being negotiated where Limelight is expected to charge a management fee in order to cover running costs and 
generate an income. Intercompany loans between Emalahleni Housing Company Npc and Limelight Property Investments (Pty) 
Ltd as subordinated.

3. Events after reporting date

  Since 31 December 2019, the spread of Covid-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the world. President Cyril 
Ramaphosa’s level 5 lockdown announcement on 15 March 2020 forced many businesses to cease or limit operations for long 
or infinite periods. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and 
closure of non-essential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses, resulting in an economic slowdown. The 
company’s business activities continued due to the nature of the business although not an essential service.

  At this stage ,the effect of Covid-19 on the business results is limited. We will continue to follow regulations set by the 
government and in parallel will do our utmost to continue our operations in the best and safest way possible without 
jeopardising the health of our employees and clients.

4. Directors’ interest in contracts

 To our knowledge none of the directors had any interest in contracts entered into during the year under review.

5. Authorised and issued share capital

  No changes were approved or made to the authorised or issued share capital of the company during the year under review.

Directors’ Report
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6. Borrowing limitations

  In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the company, the directors may exercise all the powers of the company to 
borrow money, as they consider appropriate.

7. Dividends

 No dividends were declared nor paid to the shareholder during the year.

8. Directors

 The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows: CB Dlamini (Chairperson)

 RL Chauke
 DB Khoza
 MG Xaba
 ZA Shongwe
 SJ Sekgobela (Resigned 20 April 2020)

9 Secretary

 The company secretary is R Tsokodayi.

10. Shareholder

 There has been no changes in ownership and the shareholder remains:

%

Emalahleni Housing Company Npc 100

11. Independent Auditors

 A2A Kopano Incorporated were the independent auditors for the year under review.

Directors’ Report
Directors’ Report continued …
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statement of financial Position
Figures in R Note(s) 2020 2019

Assets

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 3 315,613 –

Cash and cash equivalents 4 191,036 64,780

506,649 64,780

Total Assets 506,649 64,780

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Stated capital 5 100 100

Accumulated loss (237,118) (3,614)

(237,018) (3,514)

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 6 743,667 68,294

Total Equity and Liabilities 506,649 64,780
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statement of comprehensive Income
Figures in R 2020 2019

Operating costs (133,614) (3,614)

Operating loss (133,614) (3,614)

Finance costs (99,890) –

Loss for the year (233,504) (3,614)

Accumulated loss at 1 March 2019 (3,614) –

Loss for the year (233,504) (3,614)

Accumulated loss at 29 February 2020 (237,118) (3,614)
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statement of changes in equity

Figures in R Share capital
Accumulated 

loss
Total

Balance at 1 March 2018 – – –

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss for the year – (3,614) (3,614)

Total comprehensive loss for the year – (3,614) (3,614)

Issue of share capital 100 100

Balance at 28 February 2019 100 (3,614) (3,514)

Balance at 1 March 2019 100 (3,614) (3,514)

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss for the year (233,504) (233,504)

Total comprehensive loss for the year – (233,504) (233,504)

Balance at 29 February 2020 100 (237,118) (237,018)
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statement of cash flows
Figures in R Note(s) 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year (233,504) (3,614)

Adjustments for:

Finance costs 99,890 –

Cash generated from operations – 68,394

Operating cash flow before working capital changes (133,614) 64,780

Working capital changes

Increase in trade and other receivables (315,613) –

Increase in trade and other payables 675,373 –

Net cash flows from operations 226,146 64,780

Finance costs (99,890) –

Net cash flows from operating activities 126,256 64,780

Cash flows from financing activities

Capital issued – –

Net cash flows from financing activities – –

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 126,256 64,780

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 64,780 –

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 4 191,036 64,780
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accounting Policies

1. General information

 Limelight Property Investments (Pty) Ltd is a private company incorporated in South Africa.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

  These annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards 
for Small and Medium-sized Entities issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of the 
Companies Act of South Africa. The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

  These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and are presented in South African Rands.

 2.1 Income tax

   The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that a change 
attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also recognised directly in 
other comprehensive income.

   The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date.

   Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements 
and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary 
differences that are expected to increase taxable profit in the future. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all temporary 
differences that are expected to reduce taxable profit in the future, and any unused tax losses or unused tax credits. 
Deferred tax assets are measured at the highest amount that, on the basis of current or estimated future taxable profit, is 
more likely than not to be recovered.

   The net carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current 
assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in profit or loss.

   Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in 
which it expects the deferred taxation asset to be realised or the deferred taxation liability to be settled, on the basis of tax 
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

 2.2 Trade and other receivables

   Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is 
established when there is objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the 
original terms of the receivables.

 2.3 Cash and cash equivalents

   Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown under current liabilities on the statement of financial 
position.

 2.4 Share capital and equity

  Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

   Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other resources received or receivable, net of the 
direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred and the time value of money is material, the initial 
measurement is on a present value basis.
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 2.5 Trade payables

   Trade payables are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method.

accounting Policies
Summary of significant accounting policies continued …
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notes to the annual financial statements
Figures in R 2020 2019

3. Trade and other receivables

 Likhaya Community Development NPC 1,000 –

 Emalahleni Housing Company Npc 314,613 –

315,613 –

4. Cash and cash equivalents

 Favourable cash balances

 Bank balances 191,036 64,780

5. Stated capital

 Authorised and Issued

 100 Ordinary shares of R1 each 100  100

6. Trade and other payables

 Trade creditors 140,063 –

 Likhaya Community Development NPC – 68,294

 Value Added Tax 603,604 –

743,667 68,294

7. Directors’ emoluments

Name
Fees paid to 
directors for 

services

CB Dlamini (Chairperson) 23,355

RL Chauke 12,492

DB Khoza 12,492

MG Xaba –

ZA Shongwe –

SJ Sekgobela –

48,339
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notes to the annual financial statements

8. Related parties

Name Relationship Transaction

Amounts owed (to) / by the 
related party at year-end

2020 2019

Emalahleni Housing Company Npc Holding company Inter company Loans (314,613) –

Likhaya Community Development Npc Group entity Inter company Loans (1,000) 68,294

9. Subsequent events

  Since December 2019, the spread of Covid-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the world. President 
Ramaphosa’s level 5 lockdown announcement on 15 March 2020 forced many businesses to cease or limit operations for long 
or indefinite periods. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and 
closures of non-essential services triggered significant disruptions to business, resulting in an economic slowdown.

  The company’s management has determined that these events are non-adjusting events, accordingly the results for February 
2020 have not been adjusted to reflect the impact.

10. Going Concern

  Since December 2019, the spread of Covid-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the world. President 
Ramaphosa’s level 5 lockdown announcement on 15 March 2020 forced many businesses to cease or limit operations for long 
or indefinite periods. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and 
closures of non-essential services triggered significant disruptions to business, resulting in an economic slowdown.

  The company’s management has determined that these events are non-adjusting events, accordingly the results for February 
2020 have not been adjusted to reflect the impact.
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Detailed Income statement
Figures in R Note 2020 2019

Expenditure

Auditors’ remuneration 8,075 -

Bank charges 5,773 3,614

Consulting fees–Submetering implementation 71,427 -

Emoluments–Directors 7 48,339 -

Finance costs 99,890 -

233,504 3,614

Loss for the year (233,504) (3,614)
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Independent auditor’s Report

To the Directors of Likhaya Community Development NPC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Likhaya Community Development NPC set out on pages 120 to 126, which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 29 February 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes 
in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Likhaya Community 
Development NPC as at 29 February 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 
South Africa.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the company in accordance with the sections 290 and 291 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ 
Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board 
for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November 2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other 
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities, as applicable, in accordance with the IRBA Codes and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to 
performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Codes are consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) respectively. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the document 
titled “Likhaya Community Development NPC Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 29 February 2020”, which includes the 
Directors’ Report as required by the Companies Act 71 of South Africa, and the supplementary information set out on page 15. The 
other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of South Africa, and 
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

 – Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 – Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

 – Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the directors.

 – Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 – Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Independent Auditor’s Report continued …

Independent auditor’s Report
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We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

A2A Kopano Incorporated 30 December 2020

Per: ME Raubenheimer 
Director 
Registered Auditor

5 Van Rensburg Street 
Mbombela 
1201

Independent auditor’s Report
Independent Auditor’s Report continued …
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The directors are required by the South African Companies Act 71 of 2008 to maintain adequate accounting records and are 
responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. 
It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements satisfy the financial reporting standards as to form and content 
and present fairly the statement of financial position, results of operations and business of the company, and explain the transactions 
and financial position of the business of the company at the end of the financial year. The annual financial statements are based upon 
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied throughout the company and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the 
company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these 
responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The 
standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and 
adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the company and all 
employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the company’s business is conducted in a manner that in 
all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.

The focus of risk management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across 
the company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate 
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system of internal control 
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. 
However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material 
misstatement or loss. The going-concern basis has been adopted in preparing the annual financial statements. Based on forecasts 
and available cash resources the directors have no reason to believe that the company will not be a going concern in the foreseeable 
future. The annual financial statements support the viability of the company.

The annual financial statements as set out on pages 8 to 14 were approved by the board on 30 December 2020 and were signed on 
their behalf by:

SN Motloung (Chairperson) LP Chetty

MG Xaba

Directors’ Responsibilities and approval
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their report for the year ended 29 February 2020.

1. Review of activities

 Main business and operations

  The principal activity of the company is Community Development and there were no major changes herein during the year.

  The operating results and statement of financial position of the company are fully set out in the attached financial statements 
and do not in our opinion require any further comment.

2. Going concern

  The directors draw attention to the statement of changes in equity in the annual financial statements which indicates that 
the company incurred a net loss of R104,456 during the year ended 29 February 2020 and, as at that date, the company’s 
total liabilities exceeded its total assets by R31,684. These conditions with other matters, indicate the existence of a material 
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

  The company continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements. The uncertainty as to the future 
impact of the recent Covid-19 outbreak has been considered as part of the company’s adoption of the going concern basis. 
Covid-19 has impacted the ability to canvas funds, resulting in liquidity concerns.

  As a result of the above circumstances, there is material uncertainty as to the liquidity of the company and thereafter the going 
concern.

3. Events after reporting date

  Since December 2019, the spread of Covid-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the world. President 
Ramaphosa’s level 5 lockdown announcement on 15 March 2020 forced many businesses to cease or limit operations for long 
or indefinite periods. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and 
closures of non-essential services triggeredsignificant disruptions to business, resulting in an economic slowdown.

  The company’s management has determined that these events are non-adjusting events, accordingly the results for February 
2020 have not been adjusted to reflect the impact.

4. Directors’ interest in contracts

  To our knowledge none of the directors had any interest in contracts entered into during the year under review.

5. Borrowing limitations

  In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the company, the directors may exercise all the powers of the company to 
borrow money, as they consider appropriate.

6. Directors

  The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

 SN Motloung (Chairperson)
 LP Chetty
 RL Chauke
 DB Khoza
 MG Xaba
 ZA Shongwe
 DT Mokoena
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7. Secretary

 The company secretary is R Tsokodayi.

8. Independent Auditors

  A2A Kopano Incorporated were the independent auditors for the year under review.

Directors’ Report
Directors’ Report continued …
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statement of financial Position
Figures in R Note(s) 2020 2019

Assets

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 3 – 62,378

Cash and cash equivalents 4 3,531 183,569

3,531 245,947

Total Assets 3,531 245,947

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

(Accumulated loss) / retained earnings (31,684) 72,772

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 5 35,215 173,175

Total Equity and Liabilities 3,531 245,947
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statement of comprehensive Income
Figures in R 2020 2019

Other income 17,326 874,973

Operating costs (121,782) (802,201)

Operating (deficit) / surplus (104,456) 72,772

(Deficit) / Surplus for the year (104,456) 72,772

Retained income at the beginning of the period 72,772 –

(Deficit) / surplus for the year (104,456) 72,772

(Accumulated loss)/Retained earnings at the end of the period (31,684) 72,772
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statement of changes in equity

Figures in R
Accumulated 

loss
Total

Balance at 1 March 2018 – –

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Surplus for the year 72,772 72,772

Total comprehensive income for the year 72,772 72,772

Balance at 28 February 2019 72,772 72,772

Balance at 1 March 2019 72,772 72,772

Total comprehensive deficit for the year

Deficit for the year (104,456) (104,456)

Total comprehensive deficit for the year (104,456) (104,456)

Balance at 29 February 2020 (31,684) (31,684)
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statement of cash flows
Figures in R Note(s) 2020 2019

Cash flows (used in) / from operating activities

(Deficit) / surplus for the year (104,456) 72,772

Adjustments for:

Cash receipts from customers – 874,973

Cash paid to suppliers - (764,176)

Operating cash flow before working capital changes (104,456) 183,569

Working capital changes

Decrease in trade and other receivables 62,378 –

Decrease in trade and other payables (137,960) –

Net cash flows (used in) / from operations (180,038) 183,569

Net cash flows (used in) / from operating activities (180,038) 183,569

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (180,038) 183,569

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 183,569 -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 4 3,531 183,569
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accounting Policies

1. General information

  Likhaya Community Development Npc is a private company incorporated in South Africa.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

  These annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards 
for Small and Medium-sized Entities issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of the 
Companies Act of South Africa. The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

  These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and are presented in South African Rands.

 2.1 Revenue recognition

   Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and / or services in the 
ordinary course of the company’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, and discounts.

   The company recognises revenue when: the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and specific criteria have been met for each of the company’s activities, as 
described below:

  Funds received–Revenue is recognised as funds are received

 2.2 Income tax

   The company is in the process of applying for a tax exemption certificate with the South African Revenue Services.

 2.3 Trade and other receivables

   Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is 
established when there is objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the 
original terms of the receivables.

 2.4 Cash and cash equivalents

   Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown under current liabilities on the statement of financial 
position.

 2.5 Trade payables

   Trade payables are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method.
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notes to the annual financial statements
Figures in R 2020 2019

3. Trade and other receivables

 Limelight Property Investments – 62,378

– 62,378

4. Cash and cash equivalents

 Favourable cash balances

 Bank balances 3,531 183,569

3,531 183,569

5. Trade and other payables

 Sundry creditors 35,215 173,175

6. Revenue

 An analysis of revenue is as follows:

 Funds received 17,326 874,973

17,326 874,973

7. Directors’ emoluments

Name
Fees paid to 
directors for 

services

SN Motloung (Chairperson) 39,537

LP Chetty –

RL Chauke 18,281

DB Khoza 18,281

MG Xaba –

ZA Shongwe –

DT Mokoena 18,281

94,380
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8. Related parties

Name Relationship Transaction

Amounts owed (to) / by the 
related party at year-end

2020 2019

Limelight Property Investments (Pty) Ltd Group entity Inter company Loans (1,000) 62,378

Emalahleni Housing Company Npc Group entity Inter company Loans (34,215) (173,175)

9. Subsequent events

  Since December 2019, the spread of Covid-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the world. President 
Ramaphosa’s level 5 lockdown announcement on 15 March 2020 forced many businesses to cease or limit operations for long 
or indefinite periods. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and 
closures of non-essential services triggered significant disruptions to business, resulting in an economic slowdown.

  The company’s management has determined that these events are non-adjusting events, accordingly the results for February 
2020 have not been adjusted to reflect the impact.

10. Going Concern

  Since December 2019, the spread of Covid-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the world. President 
Ramaphosa’s level 5 lockdown announcement on 15 March 2020 forced many businesses to cease or limit operations for long 
or indefinite periods. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and 
closures of non-essential services triggered significant disruptions to business, resulting in an economic slowdown.

  The company’s management has determined that these events are non-adjusting events, accordingly the results for February 
2020 have not been adjusted to reflect the impact.

notes to the annual financial statements
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued …
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Detailed Income statement
Figures in R Note 2020 2019

Other Income

Funds received 17,326 874,973

17,326 874,973

17,326 874,973

Expenditure

Advertising 7,411 718,364

Auditors’ remuneration 17,250 –

Bank charges 2,741 1,145

Emoluments – Directors 7 94,380 –

Entertainment – 10,074

Community Development Programs – 70,230

Printing and stationery – 2,388

121,782 802,201

(Deficit) / surplus for the year (104,456) 72,772
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